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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag

September 30,
2011 December 31,
(unaudited’ 2010

Assets:
Cash and cash equivale! $ 9,82¢ $ 7,17:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Senior ($146.4 million and $484.1 million resultifigm consolidation of VIEs 321,48 987,68!

Subordinated ($1.4 billion and $1.5 billion resudtifrom consolidation of VIEs 2,074,40! 2,210,85!

Senior, no-retained (held in consolidated VIE 2,013,79 2,330,56!
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 4,952,72. 2,133,58
Securitized loans held for investment (held in adidated VIES), net of allowance for loan losses of
$7.0 million and $6.6 million, respective 286,00¢ 353,53:
Accrued interest receivab 55,53¢ 49,08¢
Other asset 422 1,212
Total asset $ 9,714,20! $ 8,073,70!
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RMBS ($4.4 billieh®1l.7 billion of RMBS pledged as collateral,
respectively’ $ 4,171,190 $ 1,600,07:
Repurchase agreements, non-Agency RMBS ($0.0 24@.4 million of RMBS pledged as collateral
respectively’ - 208,71¢
Securitized debt, loans held for investment, isduedonsolidated VIEs ($286.0 million and $353.5
million of securitized loans pledged as collateraspectively’ 230,76° 289,23t
Securitized debt, non-Agency RMBS, issued by cadateéd VIES, non-retained ($3.6 billion and $4.
billion of RMBS pledged as collateral, respectiye 1,753,22! 1,956,07!
Payable for investments purcha: - 127,69:
Accrued interest payab 11,53¢ 11,641
Dividends payabli 133,44 174,44:
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 1,58: 393
Investment management fees payable to affi 13,417 12,42:
Interest rate swaps, at fair value ($50.4 millio $12.8 million of RMBS pledged as collateral,
respectively’ 44,97( 9,98¢
Total liabilities $ 6,360,13( $ 4,390,69:
Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,50000006hares authorized, 1,027,246,793 and
1,027,034,357 shares issued and outstanding, tésge $ 10,26¢ $ 10,261
Additional paic-in-capital 3,603,041 3,601,891
Accumulated other comprehensive income (i 29,97 321,53
Retained earnings (accumulated defi (289,207 (250,68
Total stockholders' equit $ 3,354,060 $ 3,683,001
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 9,714,200 $ 8,073,70!

See notes to consolidated financial statem:




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag

(unaudited’
For the Quarter Ende For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, September September 30, September
2011 30, 201C 2011 30, 201C

Net Interest Income:
Interest incom $ 177,64C $ 139,68! $ 600,57t $ 401,92
Interest expens 7,217 8,03¢ 22,70( 21,907
Interest income, ne¢-retainec 35,03( 55,08¢ 107,56¢ 169,72:
Interest expense, n-retained 25,57¢ 32,23 81,46: 87,48¢
Net interest income (expens 179,87¢ 154,50( 603,98: 462,25
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (249,25 (51,927) (432,979 (135,13¢)
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other compredive income (loss 208,08 42,11 327,46¢ 84,03:
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (41,176 (9,810 (105,504 (51,104
Other gains (losses)
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (25,31%) (13,587) (34,98)) (24,82()
Realized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (4,500 (2,497 (11,649 (3,197

Gains (losses) on interest rate swa| (29,817 (16,076 (46,62%) (28,017)
Net gains (losses) on inter-only RMBS 52 - (4,390 -
Net gains (losses) on embedded derivatives ings-only RMBS (28,17Y - (30,409 -
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investment: 28 2,032 1,34 2,374
Total other gains (losse (57,9079 (14,049 (80,087) (25,63¢)
Net investment income (los 80,79¢ 130,64¢ 418,39 385,51!
Other expenses
Management fe 13,25: 11,31¢ 39,154 28,69
Provision for loan losse - 482 1,44: 2,11z
General and administrative expen 1,83( 1,79¢ 5,13 4,361
Total other expense 15,08: 13,59¢ 45,73: 35,17«
Income (loss) before income taxe 65,71 117,04¢ 372,66 350,34
Income taxe: (177 752 64E 752
Net income (loss' $ 65,88 $ 116,29¢ $ 372,01¢ $ 349,58!
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute: $ 0.0¢6 $ 0.1: $ 0.3¢ $ 0.4t
Weighted average number of shares outstar-basic and dilute: 1,027,195,40 883,147,72 1,027,130,13 773,777,43
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income (loss $ 65,88 $ 116,29¢ $ 372,01¢ $ 349,58!
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, n (58,429 24,13 (395,72) 100,50«
Reclassification adjustment for net losses incluidetket income (loss) for
othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 41,17¢ 9,81( 105,50« 51,10¢
Reclassification adjustment for net realized logges) included in net
income (loss (28) (2,032 (1,342 (2,379
Other comprehensive income (lo (17,289 31,91( (291,56 149,23:
Comprehensive income (los $ 48,60 $ 148,20¢ $ 80,45 $ 498,82.

See notes to consolidated financial statem:t




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

(unaudited
Accumulated Retained
Common Additional Other Earnings
Stock Par Paid-in Comprehensiv  (Accumulatec
Value Capital Income (Loss Deficit) Total
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 6,69 $ 2,290,61. $ (99,759 $ (70,99) $ 2,126,56:
Net income (loss - - - 349,58¢ 349,58¢
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ - - - (88,187 (88,187
Other comprehensive income (lo - - 149,23« - 149,23
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinvest - 262 - - 263
Proceeds from common stock offerir 2,12¢ 765,42! - - 767,55!
Restricted stock gran 1 357 - - 35¢€
Common dividends declared, $0.52 per sl - - - (403,029 (403,029
Balance, September 30, 20 $ 8,82 $ 3,056,65 $ 49,48 $ (212,61) $ 2,902,34
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,267 $ 3,601,890 $ 321,53° $ (250,68) $ 3,683,00
Net income (loss - - - 372,01¢ 372,01¢
Other comprehensive income (lo - - (291,565 - (291,569
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinvest 3 78< - - 78¢€
Proceeds from common stock offerir - 7 - - 7
Restricted stock gran - 36C - - 36C
Common dividends declared, $0.40 per sl - - - (410,549 (410,544
Balance, September 30, 20 $ 10,26¢ $ 3,603,041 $ 29,97: $ (289,20) $ 3,354,06

See notes to consolidated financial statem:




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousands
(unaudited

For the Nine Months Ende

September 30,  September 30,
2011 2010

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss $ 372,01¢ $ 349,58t
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by (used in) operating activitie
(Accretion) amortization of investment discountefpiums (212,789 (197,83()
(Accretion) amortization of debt issue costs ofusitized debt, no-retained 6,867 8,892
Unrealized losses (gains) on interest rate s\ 34,981 24,82(
Net losses (gains) on inter-only RMBS 4,39( -
Unrealized losses (gains) on embedded derivativegeres-only RMBS 30,40¢ -
Realized losses (gains) on sales of investrr (1,342 (2,379
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 105,50¢ 51,10
Provision for loan losse 1,44z 2,112
Restricted stock gran 36C 358
Changes in operating asse

Decrease (increase) in accrued interest reclei' (6,597 (14,639

Decrease (increase) in other as 79C 1,13¢
Changes in operating liabilitie

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable andl@thdities 1,19 33¢€

Increase (decrease) in investment managemenpégable to affiliat 99t 2,89z

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa (109 7,92¢
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 338,12 $ 234,32:
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Mortgage-Backed Securities portfolic

Purchase $ (3,664,51) $ (2,299,93))

Sales 670,86: 298,28

Principal payment 428,64: 562,31:
Mortgage-Backed Securities portfolio, n-retained:

Principal payment 520,73t 457,98
Securitized loans

Principal payment 65,341 78,32¢
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi $ (1,978,92) $ (903,030
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from repurchase agreem $ 12,863,36 $ 12,780,97

Payments on repurchase agreem (10,500,97) (13,188,15)

Net proceeds from common stock offeril 7 767,55:

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, lo@hd for investmen (58,469 (70,689

Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings -retainec 311,01: 1,127,87.

Payments on securitized debt borrowings,-retained (520,730() (403,449

Net proceeds from direct purchase and dividenvestmen 78€ 263

Common dividends pa (451,546 (358,007
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $ 1,643,45. $ 656,37¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis $ 2,651 $ (12,330
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 7,178 24,27¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 9,822 $ 11,94¢

See notes to consolidated financial statemt




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(dollars in thousands

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

(unaudited’

Interest pait 94,81 $ 104,65¢

Taxes paif - $ 758
Non-cash investing activities:

Payable for investments purcha: - $ 279,64¢

Net change in unrealized gain on avail-for sale securitie (291,56H) $ 149,23¢
Non-cash financing activities:

Common dividends declared, not yet ¢ 133,440 $ 158,81

See notes to consolidated financial statem:t




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
(unaudited)

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (“Company”) was oiged in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Companymented operations on
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial fzibffering. The Company has elected to be tea®d real estate investment tr“REIT”),
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amenidetlly 2008, the Company formed Chimera Seiesritioldings, LLC, a wholly-owned
subsidiary. In June 2009, the Company formed Ctamdesset Holding LLC and Chimera Holding LLC, betholly-owned subsidiaries. In
January 2010, the Company formed Chimera SpecillittpLLC, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of @fera Asset Holding LLC. In July
2010, the Company formed CIM Trading Company LL®&helly-owned subsidiary. Chimera Securities Hogii, LLC, Chimera Asset
Holding LLC, Chimera Holding LLC, and Chimera Sgddilolding LLC are qualified REIT subsidiaries. NCITrading Company LLC (“CIM
Trading”) is a taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRS"). Aalg Capital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”) owns approately 4.38% of the Company’s
common shares. The Company is managed by Fixedna®discount Advisory Company (“FIDAC”), an investnt advisor registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). FIDA@ wholly-owned subsidiary of Annaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements include tumants of the Company and its direct and indiwdatlly-owned subsidiaries. All
intercompany balances and transactions have beamaied.

Immaterial Restatement

Beginning with the financial statements for the mignth period ending June 30, 2011, the Comparigseified previously presented
financial information so that amounts previouslggented in the Consolidated Statement of Operatiod<Comprehensive Income (Loss) as
interest expense on swaps are presented in Other @@sses) as Realized gains (losses) on intexssswaps. Financial statements for periods
prior to June 30, 2011 have been conformed todbtated presentation.

Beginning with the financial statements for theenmonth period ending September 30, 2011, the Coynpeclassified previously
presented financial information so that amountsipiesly presented in the Consolidated Statemefash Flows as Payments on securitized
debt borrowings, non-retained in the Cash FlowsrFranancing Activities section are presented a<(ation) amortization of debt issue costs
of securitized debt, non-retained in the Cash FIBrasn Operating Activities section. Financial staents for periods prior to September 30,
2011 have been conformed to the restated presamtati

Subsequent to issuance of the Company’s 2010 ddasad financial statements, the Company deterntinatthe application of ASC
325-40,Investments — Other, Beneficial Interests in S¢ized Financial Assetsshould be applied rather than ASC 3204h@estments — Debt
and Equity Securitiesin evaluating non-Agency RMBS that are not ofthagedit quality for other-than-temporary impairmé@®TTI”) and
related interest income recognition. The Compamsiers a non-Agency RMBS to be not of high crgddlity when it does not have an actual
or implied rating of AA or higher at the time ofcagsition.

The difference between the two methodologies liéngrily in the impact of the timing of cash flows recognition of impairment and
determination of yield.




Under ASC 320-10, the determination of whether OfAd3 occurred is a three step process allowing geament to factor in subjective
market-based criteria for measurement uncertamtha well as management’s intent to sell andtgthioi hold the investment pending
recovery. The Company classifies its investmest&aailable for Sale’and as such, unrealized gains and losses are excftmn earnings ar
reported in Other Comprehensive Income ( “ OCLNJil realized. If it is determined by managemsmvaluation of both objective and
subjective criteria that the decline in fair vahslow amortized cost is other than temporary, #re®TTI has occurred. The amount related to
decline in expected future cash flows (credit lasscognized in earnings and the balance of theuat is considered related to other factors
and recognized in OCI. The Company revises thid yised to accrete premium and discounts on sezuritonthly to update for actual
prepayments and losses and estimates of futureyamemt rates in accordance with ASC 310-20.

Under ASC 325-40, OTTI is taken when the fair vakikess than amortized cost or “reference amo(art’unrealized loss position) a
there is an adverse change in the cash flows froat was previously expected to be collected. Dateéng the change in cash flows involves
comparing the present value of the remaining ckstsfexpected to be collected at the date prewoeslised against the present value of the
cash flows expected to be collected at the cuneprting date. The OTTI is separated into an arhoepresenting the credit loss and the
amount related to other factors (the balance ofitirealized loss). The amount related to the ttess is recognized in earnings and the amount
related to other factors is recognized in OCI. Phevious amortized cost basis less the amourterkta the credit loss that is recognized in
earnings becomes the new amortized cost or referamount. Further under ASC 325-40, for recognitibincome, whether it is a favorable or
adverse change in cash flows, the accretable igefebalculated as the excess of the present wdlcash flows expected to be collected over the
reference amount and applied prospectively.

As discussed above, as a result of this analyssCbmpany is making correcting prospective restates (hereafter referred to as
“restatements”) to its historical financial statertsefor the quarter and nine months ended SepteBih&010 and as of December 31, 2010, and
has made a similar evaluation of this issue incthraparative historical periods. While these restents will have an impact on the reported
GAAP Net Income (Loss) for each historical periodier evaluation, the Company does not believe tretatements are material to its
historical consolidated financial statements foy eported periods. These restatements have nct effethe Company’s previously reported
book value, its net increase (decrease) in casltasid equivalents as presented in its historicakGladated Statement of Cash Flows, nor its
taxable income which is the basis of the Compadiviglend distributions. See Note 17 for additiodatail on the effect of the restatements.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handasddeposited overnight in money market funds.
(c) Non-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-Baekl Securities

The Company invests in residential mortgage-baslkedrities (‘RMBS”) representing interests in ohtigns backed by pools of
mortgage loans. The Company delineates betweehgdncy RMBS, (2) non-Agency RMBS, and (3) non-AgeRMBS, non-retained as
follows: The Agency RMBS are mortgage pass-throcgytificates, collateralized mortgage obligati¢fdMOs”), and other RMBS
representing interests in or obligations backegdiyls of mortgage loans issued or guaranteed @srtcipal and/or interest repayment by
agencies of the U.S. Government or federally chedteorporations such Ginnie Mae, Freddie Mac eniaMae. The non-Agency RMBS are
not issued or guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Maainnie Mae and is therefore subject to cradk. Non-Agency RMBS, noretained ar
detailed in Note 8 to these consolidated finarstialements.

The Company holds its RMBS as available-for-saeprds investments at estimated fair value as idbescin Note 5 of these
consolidated financial statements, and includesalired gains and losses in other comprehensiwragloss) in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)mRnme to time, as part of the overall manageméitsgortfolio, the Company may sell
any of its RMBS investments and recognize a redlgagn or loss as a component of earnings in thes@aated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss) utilizing the speddfentification method.




Interest income on RMBS is computed on the remgipiincipal balance of the investment securityenfum or discount
amortization/accretion on Agency RMBS is recogniaedr the life of the investment using the effegtinterest method Premium or discount
amortization/accretion on non-Agency RMBS is redpgd in accordance with ASC 325-40 for RMBS ratestithan AA as well as non-rated
non-Agency RMBS and other subordinate RMBS thathateof high credit quality, and in accordance wiBC 320 for RMBS that are of high
credit quality. The Company considers RMBS withaatual or implied rating of AA or higher at theng of acquisition to be of high credit
quality. For non-Agency RMBS, the Company estimatethe time of purchase expected future caslsflpvepayment speeds, credit losses,
loss severity, and loss timing based on the Comipayservation of available market data, its exgeee, and the collective judgment of its
management team to determine the effective intea¢ston the RMBS. The Company periodically reestds, and if necessary, makes
adjustments to its analysis utilizing internal migdend external market research in conjunction withagement’s view on performance in the
non-Agency RMBS sector. Changes to the Comparsgaraptions subsequent to the purchase date maasenr decrease the
amortization/accretion of premiums or discountsclihaffects interest income. Changes to assumptitisiecrease expected future cash flows
may result in OTTI.

The Company evaluates quarterly, or more oftenafkat conditions warrant, each investment in itsB8vportfolio for OTTI. The
amortized cost of each investment in an unrealiassl position is compared to the present valupéeted future cash flows of the position. In
estimating future cash flows, the Company evaluttesion-Agency RMBS for OTTI by considering deliegcies, credit losses, loss severities,
prepayment speeds, geographic data, borrower dbasdics, loan-to-value ratios, seasoning anditsegbport in conjunction with broader
macroeconomic expectations such as home price clapom, expectations of future delinquencies arss Iseverities and the ability of the
borrower to refinance or modify their loans. I€t@ompany does not intend to sell and is not nikedylthan not required to sell the debt
security prior to its anticipated recovery, thediréoss, if any, is recognized in earnings, wlhiie balance of impairment related to other factors
is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (LoEghe Company intends to sell the debt secudtywill be more likely than not required to
sell the security before its anticipated recovémng, full unrealized loss is recognized in earninbe determination cannot be overcome by
management judgment of the probability of collegtadl cash flows previously projected. If the istraent is of high credit quality, and the
present value of the expected future cash flovessis than its amortized cost, the Company will gpépe OTTI in accordance with ASC
320. Further, in accordance with ASC 325-40, fbtBS that are not of high credit quality, if an adsechange in cash flows expected to be
collected has occurred since the initial transactiate (or the last date previously revised), then@any will recognize an OTTI.

(d) Interest-Only RMBS

The Company invests in interest-only Agency and-Agency RMBS. On April 1, 2011, the Company eledtesl fair value option for
interest-only RMBS acquired on or after such datese interest-only RMBS represent the Compangts to receive a specified proportion of
the contractual interest flows of specific RMB®itelrestonly strips acquired on or after April 1, 2011 areasured at fair value through earni
in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Opmratand Comprehensive Income (Loss). The intemdgtstrips are included in RMBS, at
fair value on the accompanying consolidated statésnaf financial condition.

(e) Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company'’s securitized residential mortgagedame comprised of fixed-rate and variable-ratesoaViortgage loans are
designated as held for investment, and are caatidukir principal balance outstanding, plus argmums or discounts, less allowances for loan
losses. Interest income on loans held for investriserecognized over the life of the investmenhgshe effective interest method. Income
recognition is suspended for loans when, in thaiopiof management, a full recovery of income andgpal becomes doubtful. Income
recognition is resumed when the loan becomes adnally current and performance is demonstratdzetoesumed. The Company estimates
value of securitized loans as described in Notéthese consolidated financial statements.

(f) Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has established an allowance for lagsek on its securitized loans held for investrperifolio at a level that
management believes is adequate based on an ésalabknown and inherent risks related to the siéizad loans. The securitized loan
portfolio is comprised primarily of non-conformingingle family, owner occupied, jumbo, prime loéinat are not guaranteed as to repayment of
principal or interest. The allowance for loanses is established to provision for the credit askociated with a borrower’s default on its loan
and the potential for recovery at the liquidatidrihee property in an amount less than the unpaitcgral balance of the loan. The estimate is
based on the aggregation of factors including eureeonomic conditions, industry loss experienice,ldban originator’s loss experience, credit
quality trends, loan portfolio composition, delirpey trends, national and local economic trendsomal unemployment data, changes in
housing appreciation or depreciation and whethecifip geographic areas where the Company hasfigigni loan concentrations are
experiencing adverse economic conditions and ewertis as natural disasters that may affect thé &mmmomy or property values. Upon
purchase of a pool of loans, the Company obtairtsenrrepresentations and warranties from the isefleat the Company will be reimbursed for
the value of the loan if the loan fails to meet éigeeed upon origination standards. While the Comghas little history of its own to establish
loan trends, delinquency trends of the originatord the current market conditions aid in deterngrihre allowance for loan losses. The
Company has created a general provision for prebakin losses estimated as a percentage of théniaghanpaid principal balance on the
loans. Management’s estimate is based on histaxgeerience of similarly underwritten pools in gumction with current and expected market
trends.




When the Company determines it is probable thatiipeontractually due amounts are uncollectilthes amount is considered
impaired. Where impairment is indicated, a valwatirite-off is measured based upon the excedseafetcorded investment over the net fair
value of the collateral, reduced by selling cogtay deficiency between the carrying amount of ased and the net sales price of repossessed
collateral is charged to the allowance for loarséss

(9) Repurchase Agreements

The Company may finance the acquisition of its gtieent securities through the use of repurchasseagnts. Repurchase agreements
are treated as collateralized financing transastand are carried at their contractual amountsydireg accrued interest, as specified in the
respective agreements.

(h) Securitized Debt, loans held for investment an&ecuritized Debt, Non-Retained

The Company has issued securitized debt to finascesidential mortgage loan portfolio and haseeuritized RMBS to finance a
portion of its RMBS portfolio. Certain transactoimvolving residential mortgage loans are accalifde as financings, and are recorded as an
asset called “Securitized loans held for investrhantl the corresponding debt as “Securitized debtys held for investment” in the
consolidated statements of financial condition.eSéhsecuritizations are collateralized by residéatijustable or fixed rate mortgage loans that
have been placed in a trust and pay interest a@ndipal payments to the debt holders of that s¢ization. Re-securitization transactions
classified as “Securitized debt, non-retained"aefthe transfer to a trust of fixed or adjustable RMBS which are classified as “Non-Agency
RMBS Senior, non-retained (held in consolidated 8jTEhat pay interest and principal payments todébt holders of that re-securitization. Re-
securitization transactions completed by the Com@aa accounted for as financings pursuant to ASE Gonsolidation. The holders of
Securitized debt and Securitized debt, non-retaira@ no recourse to the Company, and the Compaewy bt receive any interest or principal
paid on such debt. The Company estimates fairevaelsecuritized debt and securitized debt, noaitet! as described in Note 5 to these
consolidated financial statements. The assoclabilities are carried at amortized cost.

(i) Fair Value Disclosure

A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdlire Company to fair value its financial instrurteeis included in Note 5 to these
consolidated financial statements.

(j) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Adivity

The Company'’s policies permit it to enter into ®ative contracts, including interest rate swapsiatetest rate caps, as a means of
mitigating its interest rate risk. The Company imte to use interest rate derivative instrumentsitigate interest rate risk rather than to enhance
returns. Interest rate swaps are recorded ag eisisets or liabilities in the consolidated statened financial condition, and measured at fair
value with realized and unrealized gains and lossesgnized in earnings. Net payments on inteegetswaps are included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows as a component of net iedposs). Unrealized gains (losses) on intergstsaaps are removed from net income (loss)
as an adjustment to cash flows from operating gietsv The Company estimates fair value of interatt swaps as described in Note 5 of these
consolidated financial statements.

The Company elects to net by counterparty thevigine of interest rate swap contracts. These aotsticontain legally enforceable
provisions that allow for netting or setting offalf individual swap receivables and payables wi#lkh counterparty and, therefore, the fair value
of those swap contracts are netted by counterpditye credit support annex provisions of the Corg{saimterest rate swap contracts allow the
parties to mitigate their credit risk by requiritige party which is out of the money to post collateAs the Company elects to net by
counterparty the fair value of interest rate swapti@acts, it also nets by counterparty any casitloer collateral exchanged as part of the interest
rate swap contracts.




(k) Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactiongtiich it sells financial assets, such as RMBSitgage loans and other
assets. Gains and losses on sales of assetsnapeteal on the specific identification method wherdte Company records a gain or loss on the
difference between the carrying value of the aardtthe proceeds from the sale. In addition, the@any from time to time securitizes or re-
securitizes assets and sells tranches in the reaglyritized assets. These transactions may bedextas either a sale and the assets contributec
to the securitization are removed from the consddid statements of financial condition and a gaioss is recognized, or as a financing
whereby the assets contributed to the securitizatie not derecognized but rather the liabilitsssied by the securitization are recorded to re
the term financing of the assets. In these sezatibns and re-securitizations, the Company mégjinesenior or subordinated interests in the
securitized and/or re-securitized assets.

() Income Taxes

The Company elected to be taxed as a REIT, andftirerit generally will not be subject to corpordegleral, or state income tax to the
extent that qualifying distributions are made tmckholders and the REIT requirements, includingaierasset, income, distribution and stock
ownership tests are met. If the Company failequalify as a REIT and did not qualify for certatatsitory relief provisions, the Company wo
be subject to federal, state and local income taresmay be precluded from qualifying as a REITtfer subsequent four taxable years follov
the year in which the REIT qualification was lo3the Company and CIM Trading made a joint electmtreat the subsidiary as a TRS. As
such, CIM Trading is taxable as a domestic C caton and subject to federal, state, and localnmetaxes based upon its taxable income.

The provisions of FASB ASC 74(come Taxesclarify the accounting for uncertainty in incomages recognized in financial
statements and prescribe a recognition threshadregasurement attribute for tax positions takeexpected to be taken on a tax return. FASB
ASC 740 also requires that interest and penaléiketead to unrecognized tax benefits be recognzdithancial statements. The Company does
not have any unrecognized tax benefits that wofikttits financial position. Thus, no accruals penalties and interest were necessary as of
September 30, 2011.

(m) Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shadévliling net income for the period by the weighteverage shares of its common
stock outstanding for that period. Diluted netome per share takes into account the effect ofid@dunstruments, such as stock options, but
the average share price for the period in detergitiie number of incremental shares that are tdded to the weighted average number of
shares outstanding. The Company had no potentdlive securities outstanding during the peripdssented.

(n) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and itfiafs in accordance with
ASC 505-50Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employe&airsuant to ASC 505-50 the Company measurdsithealue of the equity instrument
using the stock prices and other measurement asgunas of the earlier of either the date at whagierformance commitment by the
counterparty is reached or the date at which thetesparty’s performance is complete. Compensatigense related to the grants of stock and
stock options is recognized over the vesting peoioglich grants based on the fair value of thekstocthe vesting date.

(o) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States
of America (“GAAP”) requires management to makeneates and assumptions that affect the reportediata®f assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and the redamounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. The most significant estimatesratated to the following: all investment secestclassified as available-for-sale and interest
rate swaps are reported at their estimated faireyalll investment securities are amortized/acdrbtesed on yields that incorporate
management’s assumptions as to the expected penfioerof the investment over time; OTTI requiresGloenpany to estimate expected future
cash flows over the expected life of an investmant the loan loss provision reflects managemeamhates with regard to expected losses o
securitized loan portfolio. Actual results couiffel from those estimates.
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(p) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Presentation

Comprehensive Income (ASC 220)

In June 2011, FASB released ASU 2011-05, whichrgite to improve the comparability, consistency, ssadsparency of financial
reporting and increase the prominence of itemsrtegan OCI. The amendment requires that all namer changes in stockholders’ equity be
presented either in a single continuous statenfemttdincome and comprehensive income or two séparnsecutive statements. Either
presentation requires the presentation on thedatiee financial statements any reclassificatiojustthents for items that are reclassified from
OCI to net income in the statements. There ishamge in what must be reported in OCI or whenem ibf OCI must be reclassified to net
income. This update is effective for fiscal yeausg interim periods within those years, beginraftgr December 15, 2011. This update will
result in additional disclosure, but is expectetidoe no material effect on the Company’s constdidlfinancial statements.

Assets

Intangibles- Goodwill and Other (ASC 350)

In September 2011, FASB released ASU 2011-08, walichivs an entity to first assess qualitative fexto determine whether it is
necessary to perform the two-step quantitative gabanpairment test. The objective of the updetéo simplify how entities test goodwill for
impairment. Under this update, an entity is nguieed to calculate the fair value of a reportimgt winless the entity determines that it is more
likely than not that its fair value is less thamd¢trrying amount. This update if effective fanaal and interim goodwill impairment tests
performed for fiscal years beginning after Decenttigr2011. The Company is not eligible to electyeadoption. This update has no material
effect on the Company’s consolidated financialestants.

Broad Transactions

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820)

In May 2011, FASB release ASU 2011-04 further cagirey US GAAP and IFRS by providing common fairs@measurement and
disclosure requirements. The amendments in thdatepchange the wording used to describe the emeints in US GAAP for measuring fair
value and for disclosing information about fairs@imeasurements. These include those that cthgffFASB’s intent about the application of
existing fair value measurement and disclosureirements and those that change a particular pimoiprequirement for measuring fair value
or for disclosing information about fair value megsmnents. This guidance is effective for interind @annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2011. This update may result in extdit disclosure, however has no effect on the Gomgjs consolidated financial statements.

Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)

In April 2011, FASB issued ASU 2011-03 regardingueehase agreements. In a typical repurchaseragredransaction, an entity
transfers financial assets to a counterparty itamrge for cash with an agreement for the countgrpareturn the same or equivalent financial
assets for a fixed price in the future. Priorhis update one of the factors in determining wheslade treatment could be used was whether the
transferor maintained effective control of the sf@mred assets and in order to do so, the transfeust have the ability to repurchase such as
Based on this update, FASB concluded that the sisse of effective control should focus on a transf's contractual rights and obligations
with respect to transferred financial assets, ratien on whether the transferor has the pracaibéity to perform in accordance with those rig
or obligations. Therefore, this update removedrduesferors ability criterion from consideration of effectieentrol. This update is effective-
the first interim or annual period beginning orafter December 15, 2011. As the Company reconuisrchase agreements as secured
borrowings and not sales, this update will haveffiect on the Company’s consolidated financialestegnts.
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Financial Services Investment Companies (ASC 946)

In October 2011, FASB issued a proposed ASU 201Lvatich would amend the criteria in ASC 946 foratatining whether an entity
qualifies as an investment company. The propopedte would affect the measurement, presentatidrdeclosure requirements for investm
companies. This proposed update amends the ingastompany definition in ASC 946 and would remtwe current exemption for Real
Estate Investment Trusts from this topic. If thegosed update becomes effective in its curremn farmay result in material modification to t
presentation of the Compamsytonsolidated financial statements. The Compsauyiirently evaluating the possible effect of theppsed updat

3. Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The following tables present the principal valueamnortized premium, unamortized discount, grosealimed gain, gross unrealized
loss, and fair value of the Company’s availabledale RMBS portfolio as of September 30, 2011 aeddbnber 31, 2010, by asset class. The
RMBS portfolio is composed of Agency and non-AgeRiWBS collateralized by residential mortgage loafike Agency RMBS are mortgage
pass-through certificates, CMOs, and other RMB$asgnting interests in or obligations backed bylpobmortgage loans issued or guaranteed
by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, or Ginnie Mae. The-Agency RMBS portfolio is not issued or guarantegd-annie Mae, Freddie Mac, or
Ginnie Mae and is therefore subject to credit rifke Company classifies its non-Agency RMBS irgnisr, subordinated, and senior, non-
retained interests. Senior interests in non-AgeRIABS are considered to be entitled to the firgigpal repayments in their pro-rata ownership
interests. Securities identified as senior, ndained represent the portion of the Company’s ngesty RMBS included on the Company’s
balance sheet that are economically owned by fhartles. The total fair value of the non-Agency B®ithat are held by the re-securitization
trusts that are consolidated pursuant to ASC 8bBisolidation, was $3.6 billion and $4.4 billion at September 3011 and December 31, 2010
respectively. See Note 8 of these consolidatezhfital statements for further discussion on codatibn.

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unamortized Unamortized Gross Gross
Principal Value Premium Discount Unrealized Gai  Unrealized Los Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 1,28: $ 38586 $ 40 $ 26,29¢ % (91,920 $ 321,48
Subordinate( 4,886,22. 71,26¢ (2,427,20) 109,91 (565,79¢) 2,074,40!
Senior, no-retainec 1,794,02: 28,927 (150,54() 341,38t - 2,013,79i
Agency RMBS 4,643,09! 134,48¢ (160) 175,45¢ (165) 4,952,72.
Total $ 1132462 $ 620,55: $ (2,577,94) $ 653,05« $ (657,88) $ 9,362,41.
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Unamortized Unamortized Gross Gross
Principal Value Premium Discount Unrealized Gai  Unrealized Los Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 664,25. $ 427,82. $ (9,02¢) $ 31,94¢ $ (127,309 $ 987,68!
Subordinate( 4,962,82! 60,46¢ (2,793,86) 214,61 (233,18¢) 2,210,85!
Senior, no-retainec 2,008,16' 77,26¢ (159,70) 404,84« - 2,330,56!
Agency RMBS 2,035,82. 67,13: - 47,71¢ (17,090 2,133,58.
Total $ 9,671,070 $ 632,68! $ (2,962,60) $ 699,12: $ (377,589 $ 7,662,69!

Interest-only RMBS included in the table aboverespnt the right to receive a specified portiothefcontractual interest cash flows of
the underlying unamortized principal balance ofc#ipesecurities. At September 30, 2011, inte@#f RMBS accounted for under the fair
value option were in an unrealized loss positio4# million and had an amortized cost of $30.Bioni.

The following tables present the gross unrealipsdds and estimated fair value of the Company’s BMBlength of time that such

securities have been in a continuous unrealizesigosition at September 30, 2011 and December@D, 2All securities in an unrealized loss
position have been evaluated by the Company forl@$Tiscussed in Note 2(c).
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September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position Fc

Less than 12 Montt 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
RMBS Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 94,898 $ (17,67) $ 68,74¢ $ (74,24) $ 163,64. $ (91,920
Subordinatet 336,33 (105,77) 1,098,68; (460,019 1,435,01! (565,79¢)
Agency 1,54¢ (165) - - 1,54¢ (165)
Total $ 432,77¢ $ (123,61) $ 1,167,420 $ (534,266 $ 1,600,200 $ (657,88)

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position Fc

Less than 12 Montt 12 Months or Mor¢ Total
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
RMBS Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 38296¢ $ (48149 $ 227,61 $ (122,499) $ 61057¢ $ (127,309
Subordinatet 408,08° (13,457 783,23: (219,739 1,191,31! (233,18¢)
Agency 600,46 (17,090 - - 600,46 (17,090
Total $ 1,391,520 $ (35,350 $ 1,010,84. $ (342,22) $ 2,402,36. $ (377,589

The Company recorded a $41.2 million credit lossrdythe quarter ended September 30, 2011 on imezgs where the expected
future cash flows of certain non-Agency RMBS wegslthan their amortized cost basis or, in the cBBMBS not of high credit quality, an
adverse change in cash flows expected to be cetfldwd occurred since the initial transaction @at¢he last date previously revised). The
Company believes that as of the quarter ended Séete30, 2011 that all other securities with areafized loss reflect the general market value
deterioration of the asset class that has occamedlo not require a credit related impairmentfakeevaluation date.

A summary of the OTTI included in earnings for thearter and nine months ended September 30, 2@L2CHD is presented below.

For the Quarter Ende
September September

30, 2011 30, 201C
(dollars in thousand:
Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 163,75 $ 65,80¢
Additions:
Otherthar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 10,37¢ 7,57¢
Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsnem securities with previously recognized othe
thar-temporary impairment 30,79¢ 2,23
Cumulative credit loss ending balar $ 20493 $ U5
For the Nine Months Ende
September September
30, 2011 30, 201C
(dollars in thousand:
Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 99,42¢ $ 24,51
Additions:
Otherthar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 31,72: 48,48t
Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsnem securities with previously recognized othe
thar-temporary impairment 73,78 2,61¢
Cumulative credit loss ending balar $ 20493 % 75 Gl
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Changes in prepayment assumptions, actual casi,femwd expected future cash flows, among othersiteritl affect the characteristics
of each asset class. The Comparigvestment guidelines place no restrictions enctiedit rating of the assets the Company is ableld in its
portfolio. The portfolio is most heavily weightéal contain RMBS with credit risk. The Company ches assets for the portfolio after carefully
evaluating each investment’s risk profile.

September 3 December 3:

2011 201C
AAA 10.0€% 14.671%
AA 3.25% 5.34%
A 0.7%% 0.92%
BBB 3.15% 0.61%
BB 0.0(% 0.01%
B 0.0(% 0.00%
Below B or not rate: 82.7"% 78.4%
Total 100.0(% 100.0(%

The table above reflects the credit rating of tlenany’s consolidated non-Agency RMBS portfoliot September 30, 2011
approximately 13% of the AAA, AA, and A securitiealance reflected in the table above include senmm-retained, non-Agency RMBS.

The AAA rated assets in the non-Agency RMBS poidfake predominantly senior non-retained non-AgeRMBS. As the Company
securitizes or re-securitizes assets, it expeet8tiow B or not rated percentages in the portfdincrease as the Company typically retains the
subordinated tranches of these types of transaction

Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortentiséated contractual maturities. Actual maturiéthe Company’s RMBS are
affected by the contractual lives of the underlyingrtgages, periodic payments of principal and @yegents of principal. The following tables
summarize the Company’s RMBS at September 30, aatilDecember 31, 2010 according to their estimaidhted-average life
classifications. The weighted-average lives ofRiMBS at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 20t itables below are based on
consensus constant prepayment speeds. The prepayrmoéel considers current yield, forward yielegieginess of the interest rate curve, current
mortgage rates, mortgage rates of the outstandang loan age, margin, and volatility.
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September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than one
year and less than Greater than five

Less than one ye five years years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 2,68¢ $ 101,01- $ 217,78 $ 321,48
Subordinate 9,091 252,83( 1,812,48: 2,074,40!
Senior, no-retainec 389,72: 1,134,44! 489,63 2,013,79!
Agency RMBS - 4,621,101 331,62: 4,952,72.
Total fair value $ 401,50: $ 6,109,38 $ 2,851,521 $ 9,362,41.
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 6,048 $ 117,82¢ $ 263,23¢ % 387,10¢
Subordinatet 34,93: 292,30: 2,203,05 2,530,29:
Senior, no-retainec 169,67 1,033,84 468,89: 1,672,411
Agency RMBS - 4,450,69! 326,73: 4.777,42!
Total amortized cos $ 210,65: $ 5,894,66 $ 3,261,921 $ 9,367,23!
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Lif
Greater than one
year and less than Greater than five
Less than one ye five years years Total
Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 26,96: $ 587,07" $ 373,64t $ 987,68!
Subordinate 7,941 218,98t 1,983,93. 2,210,85i
Senior, no-retainec 200,46¢ 1,889,73; 240,36¢ 2,330,56!
Agency RMBS - 1,560,85! 572,72! 2,133,58:
Total fair value $ 235,37. $ 4,256,65. $ 3,170,671 $ 7,662,69!
Amortized Cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 27,05 $ 588,48 $ 467,51 $ 1,083,04
Subordinatet 13,81¢ 252,52( 1,963,09! 2,229,43:
Senior, no-retainec 236,79: 1,463,18: 225,74+ 1,925,72.
Agency RMBS - 1,513,64 589,31: 2,102,95I
Total amortized cos $ 277,65¢ $ 3,817,83 $ 3,245,66: $ 7,341,15!

The non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to creisk. The Company seeks to mitigate credit rigktigh its asset selection
process. The non-Agency RMBS portfolio is primadbllateralized by what the Company classifie&\lsA first lien mortgages. The
Company categorizes collateral as Alt-A regardtdsshether the loans were originally described@arie” if the behavior of the collateral
when the Company purchased the security more tipiesembles Alt-A. The Company defines Alt-A ladéral characteristics to be when the
60+ day delinquency bucket of the pool is gredtant5% and weighted average FICO scores are gteate650 at origination. At September
30, 2011, 98% of the non-Agency RMBS were Alt-Alatdral. At December 31, 2010, 99% of the non-AyeRMBS were Alt-A
collateral. The non-Agency securities containethia portion of the portfolio have the followingltateral characteristics at September 30, 2011
and December 31, 2010.
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September 30, 201 December 31, 201

Number of securities in portfoli 52C 581

Weighted average maturity (yea 26.5 27.4

Weighted average amortized loan to ve 72.(% 72.5%

Weighted average FIC 715.¢ 717.%

Weighted average loan balance (in

thousands $ 4741 $  447.¢

Weighted average percentage owner

occupied 85.2% 83.2%

Weighted average percentage single fami

residence 64.1% 63.1%

Weighted average current credit enhance 12.1% 16.(%

Weighted average geographic concentra CA 38.4% CA 57.8%
FL 8.4% FL 13.2%
NY 6.3% NY 7.3%
NJ 2.0% VA 3.9%
VA 2.2% NJ 3.3%

The information presented in the table above inesusknior, non-retained, non-Agency RMBS consdaitigursuant to the adoption of
ASC 810 on January 1, 2010 by the Company.

The table below presents origination year for tioenfany’s portfolio of non-Agency RMBS at Septem®@y 2011 and December 31,

2010.
September 3 December 3:
Origination Yeal 2011 201(
2003 0.8% 0.C%
2004 1.1% 0.1%
2005 13.4% 13.4%
2006 41.(% 27.(%
2007 40.9% 56.1%
2008 2.8% 3.%%
2009 0.C% 0.1%
Total 100.(% 100.(%

During the quarter ended September 30, 2011, timep@ny sold RMBS with a carrying value of $2.3 roiflifor realized gains of $28
thousand. During the quarter ended September@3@,2he Company sold RMBS with a carrying valu&2®6.0 million for realized gains of

$2.0 million.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2011, tmep@oy did not sell any bonds created in its re4stization transactions that were
executed in prior periods. During the nine morgthded September 30, 2011, the Company financedghn@securitization transactions $30
million of AAA-rated fixed rate bonds by sellingatbonds to third party investors for net proceddi3d1.0 million.

During the nine months ended September 30, 20&0Ctdmpany transferred $3.5 billion in principaluabf its RMBS to the CSMC
2010-1R, CSMC 2010-11R, and CSMC 2010-12R Trusts-securitization transactions. These transastwgre recorded as “secured
borrowings” pursuant to ASC Topics 860 and 810 riythe nine months ended September 30, 201 dmepany financed through these
transactions $1.1 billion of AAA-rated fixed ratertils by selling the bonds to third party invesforaet proceeds of $1.1 billion.
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4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The following table represents the Company’s séizad residential mortgage loans classified as falthvestment at September 30,
2011 and December 31, 2010. At September 30, appdoximately 55% of the Company’s securitized toare adjustable rate mortgage loans
and 45% are fixed rate mortgage loans. All ofabpistable rate loans held for investment are kyadjustable rate mortgages
(“ARMs"). Hybrid ARMs are mortgages that have st rates that are fixed for an initial periodo{tally three, five, seven or ten years) and
thereafter reset at regular intervals subject tier@st rate caps. The periodic cap on all hybiRIM& in the securitized loan portfolio range from
0.00% to 2.00% as of September 30, 2011 and 0.0®@®0% as of December 31, 2010. The securitizadd held for investment are carried at
their principal balance outstanding, plus premiumdiscounts, less an allowance for loan losses.

September 31 December 3:
2011 201C

(dollars in thousand:
Securitized loans, at amortized c $ 293,01¢ $ 360,11¢
Less: allowance for loan loss 7,00¢ 6,58¢
Securitized loans held for investme $ 286,00¢ $ 353,53

The securitized loan portfolio is collateralized ffyme, jumbo, first lien residential mortgagesadfich 56% were originated during
2008 and 43% were originated during 2007 and thneing 1% of the loans were originated prior t020 A summary of key characteristics

these loans follows.

September 30, 201

December 31, 201

Number of loan: 422 Bilk

Weighted average maturity (yea 25.¢ 26.€

Weighted average original loan to va 74.% 74.5%

Weighted average FIC 752 75&

Weighted average loan balance (in

thousands $ 686.: $ 694.:

Weighted average percentage owner

occupied 91.2% 90.5%

Weighted average percentage single fami

residence 58.2% 58.2%

Weighted average geographic concentra CA 35.1% CA 33.2%
FL 6.9% FL 6.7%
AZ 5.7% NJ 5.3%
IL 5.4% IL 5.3%
NJ 5.2% AZ 5.2%

The following table summarizes the changes in tlosvance for loan losses for the securitized mageggban portfolio during the

quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2@12C4.0.

For the Quarter Ende
September 30, September 30,

2011 2010

(dollars in thousand:
Balance, beginning of peric $ 7,48¢ $ 5,56¢
Provision for loan losse - 482
Chargt-offs (47%) (10
Balance, end of peric $ 7,00¢ $ 6,041

For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, September 30,

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of peric $ 6,58t $ 4,551
Provision for loan losse 1,44 2,117
Charge-offs (1,019 (622)
Balance, end of peric $ 7,00¢ $ 6,041

On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates thguadg of its allowance for loan losses which ischkited to reflect management’s
estimate of possible losses in the securitized poatfolio at the reporting date. The Company’svision for loan losses considers the quality of
the collateral, performance of like collateral, @agbectations of future market conditions as descrimore fully in Note 2(f). The Company’s
provision for loan losses is calculated on the tamiding principal balance of the portfolio, 60+ diglinquencies for like collateral and current
and expected severities for similarly underwritigans. The Compar's allowance for loan losses at September 30, 2@&18%.0 million



representing 242 basis points of the principal ii@gaof the Company’s securitized mortgage loanfgiast The Company’s allowance
for loan losses at December 31, 2010 was $6.6amjlliepresenting 185 basis points of the prindiaédnce of the Company’s securitized

mortgage loan portfolio. The following table suntimes the status of loans greater than 30 daysgietnt.

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days
Delinquent Delinquent Delinquent Bankruptcy  Foreclosure REO Total
(dollars in thousands
September 30, 201 $ 1565 $ 0 % 3,20¢ % 417  $ 7,501 $ 4,007 $ 16,70
December 31,201 $ 1,66 $ 1,55¢ $ 9,64¢ $ 937 $ 1,29t 3 1,12 $ 16,21¢
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In addition, the following table presents the lo#imest were modified during the period. Loans amgified by the servicer as a method
of loss mitigation.

Number of Post
Loans PreModification Modification
Modified During Recorded Recorded
Period Investmen Invesmen
(dollars in thousands
September 30, 201 2 3 1,97C $ 2,16:
December 31, 201 14 11,38t 11,97¢

5. Fair Value Measurements

GAAP defines fair value, establishes a frameworkni@asuring fair value, establishes a three-leaklation hierarchy for disclosure of
fair value measurement and enhances disclosur@eemgnts for fair value measurements. The valadtierarchy is based upon the
transparency of inputs to the valuation of an agséability as of the measurement date. ThedHewels are defined as follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology aretgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imdwquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitheactive markets, and inputs that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dikgor indirectly, for substantially the full terof the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.
The following discussion describes the methodowgidized by the Company to fair value its finaldnstruments by instrument cla
Short-term Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuyad interest receivable, dividends payable, atsopayable, and accrued interest
payable generally approximates estimated fair vdlueto the short term nature of these financithinments.

Nor-Agency and Agency RMBS

Generally, the Company determines the fair valuésdfivestment securities utilizing a pricing mbtleat incorporates such factors as
coupon, prepayment speeds, weighted average difleferal composition, borrower characteristicented interest rates, life caps, periodic
caps, reset dates, collateral seasoning, expexiedd, expected default severity, credit enhandeed other pertinent factors. Certain very
liquid asset classes, such as Agency fixed-rate-frasughs may be priced using independent sostgds as quoted prices for “To-Be-
Announced” securities. Management reviews thevidues generated by the model to determine whetliees are reflective of the current
market. Management performs a validation of theviaue calculated by the pricing model by compagrits results to independent prices
provided by dealers in the securities and/or thaty pricing services. The Company believes tigeovable inputs used in its model in
conjunction with dealer and/or third party priciegrvices meets the criteria for classification asdl 2.

Nor-Agency, Non-Retained RMBS

The non-Agency, non-retained securities reflectetthé consolidated financial statements are séesiconsolidated pursuant to the
Company'’s adoption of ASC 810 on January 1, 20Milese assets have been financed with third pavitesut recourse to the Company in the
normal course of the Company’s portfolio optimiratistrategy. The Company fair values these aasalescribed above hMon-Agency and
Agency RMBS See Note 8 to these consolidated financial statésrfor a detailed discussion of these securities.

Interest Rate Swayj

The Company utilizes third party quotes to detemihre fair values of its interest rate swaps. Chepany compares the third party
quotations received to its own estimate of faiueato evaluate for reasonableness. The dealeesjuatorporate common market pricing
methods, including a spread measurement to theslinggield curve or interest rate swap curve a$ aslinderlying characteristics of the
particular contract. Interest rate swaps are madgyethe Company by incorporating such factordhagérm to maturity, Treasury curve, LIBOR
rates, and the payment rates on the fixed portidheointerest rate swaps.
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Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtbtyy management to ensure the changes are ateogss markets and products
develop and the pricing for certain products becomere transparent, the Company will continue fimedts valuation methodologies. The
methodology utilized by the Company for the peripdssented is materially unchanged. The methoeld tesproduce a fair value calculation
may not be indicative of net realizable value dlexive of future fair values. Furthermore, whitee Company believes its valuation methods
appropriate and consistent with other market pg#iuts, the use of different methodologies, or aggions, to determine the fair value of cert
financial instruments could result in a differestimate of fair value at the reporting date. ThenPany uses inputs that are current as of the
measurement date, which may include periods of etatislocation, during which price transparency rhayeduced.

During times of market dislocation, as has beeresgpced for some time and continues to existptiservability of prices and inputs
can be reduced for certain instruments. If dealeiadependent pricing services are unable toideoa price for an asset, or if the price prov
by them is deemed unreliable by the Company, therasset will be valued at its fair value as deieechin good faith by the Company. In
addition, validating third party pricing for the @pany’s investments may be more subjective as fewerggzatits may be willing to provide tt
service to the Company. llliquid investments tyliic experience greater price volatility as a reatyrket does not exist. As fair value is not an
entity-specific measure and is a market-based agpravhich considers the value of an asset or liglfiitbm the perspective of a market
participant, observability of prices and inputs #any significantly from period to period. A cotidn such as this can cause instruments to be
reclassified from Level 1 to Level 2 or Level 2ltevel 3 when the Company is unable to obtain thady pricing verification.

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, thep@oy classified its assets and liabilities as L&veThe Company’s financial
assets and liabilities carried at fair value oe@urring basis are valued at September 30, 201 Dandmber 31, 2010 as presented below.

September 30, 201

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousands
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ 32148 % -
Subordinate« - 2,074,40! -
Senior, no-retainec - 2,013,79i -
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 4,952,72. -
Liabilities:
Interest rate swaf - 44,97( -
December 31, 201
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousands
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ 987,68 $ -
Subordinatet - 2,210,85! -
Senior, no-retainec - 2,330,56! -
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 2,133,58 -
Liabilities:
Interest rate swaf - 9,98¢ -

In the aggregate, the Company’s fair valuationRMIBS investments were 0.69% higher than the agtedgdealer marks for the
quarter ended September 30, 2011 and 1.04% higherthe aggregated dealer marks for the quarterdeSdptember 30, 2010.
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Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company records securitized loans held fordtnaent when it securitizes loans and records #dressiction as a “financing.” The
Company carries securitized loans held for inveatraé principal value, plus premiums or discourgglpless an allowance for loan losses. The
Company estimates the fair value of its securitioashs held for investment at the loss adjusteeetgul future cash flows of the collateral. The
Company models each underlying asset by consideaingng other items, the nature of the underlywitateral, coupon, servicer, actual and
expected defaults, actual and expected defaultitiegereset indices, and prepayment speeds ijunotion with market research for similar
collateral performance and management’'s expectatbgeneral economic conditions in the sectorgmedter economy.

Repurchase Agreemer

The Company records repurchase agreements attrgmnactual amounts including accrued interest plgyaRepurchase agreements
are collateralized financing transactions utilibgdthe Company to acquire investment securitiege @ the short term nature of these financial
instruments, the Company estimated the fair vafiubese repurchase agreements to be the contratiligation plus accrued interest payable at
maturity.

Securitized Debt, Loans Held for Investment andiiered Debt, Non-Retained

The Company records securitized debt for certifisatr notes financed without recourse to the Compasecuritization or re-
securitization transactions treated as “financingg’suant to ASC 860. The Company carries sezadttebt at the principal balance
outstanding on non-retained notes associated tgittecuritized loans held for investment plus ptens or discounts recorded with the sale of
the notes to third parties. The premiums or dist®associated with the sale of the notes or @ztés are amortized over the life of the
instrument. The Company estimates the fair vafitseouritized debt by estimating the future caskvf associated with underlying assets
collateralizing the secured debt outstanding. Chempany models the fair value of each underlyirspiby considering, among other items, the
structure of the underlying security, coupon, s&iiactual and expected defaults, actual and eghelefault severities, reset indices, and
prepayment speeds in conjunction with market resefar similar collateral performance and manageta@xpectations of general economic
conditions in the sector and greater economy.

The following table presents the carrying value astimated fair value, as described above, of trg&ny’s financial instruments at
September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Carrying Estimated Fai Carrying Estimated Fai
Amount Value Amount Value
(dollars in thousands

Non-Agency RMBS $ 4,409,69 $ 4,409,690 $ 5529,11 $ 5,529,111
Agency RMBS 4,952,72. 4,952,72. 2,133,58 2,133,58
Securitized loans held for investme 286,00¢ 276,48: 353,53. 345,41(
Repurchase agreeme! (4,171,19)) (4,176,50) (1,808,79) (1,811,57)
Securitized dek (230,76 (242,049 (289,23¢) (303,109
Securitized debt, ni-retained (1,753,22) (1,684,84) (1,956,07) (1,887,12)
Interest rate sway (44,970 (44,97() (9,98¢) (9,98¢)

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $4.2 billion and $ill®b of repurchase agreements with weighted ayetaorrowing rates of 0.30%
and 0.45% and weighted average remaining matuofi@® and 49 days as of September 30, 2011 andriteer 31, 2010, respectively. At
September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, RMBS$@deds collateral under these repurchase agreetmmhtsn estimated fair value of $4.4
billion and $2.0 billion, respectively. The aveeadpily balances of the Company’s repurchase agnetsnfior the quarters ended September 30,
2011 and December 31, 2010 were $4.3 billion ané Billion, respectively. The interest rates ofsheepurchase agreements are generally
indexed to the one-month or the three-month LIB@f and re-price accordingly.

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, theckase agreements collateralized by RMBS haébtloeving remaining
maturities.
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September 31 December 3:

2011 201(
(dollars in thousands

Overnight $ - $ -
1-29 days 1,440,36! 232,26!
30 to 59 day: 1,211,18 970,39«
60 to 89 day: 203,36:. 545,44,
90 to 119 day 430,44: 60,69¢
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 885,83" -
Total $ 4,171,190 $ 1,808,79

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, thep@oy did not have an amount at risk greater tl@&a af its equity with any
counterparty.

7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company’s securitized debt is collatezedl by residential mortgage loans or RMBS. Foafficial reporting purposes, the
Company’s securitized debt is accounted for asanfiing transaction. Thus, the residential mordagns or RMBS held as collateral are
recorded in the assets of the Company as securitaes held for investment or RMBS and the seizedtdebt is recorded as a liability in the
consolidated statements of financial condition.

At September 30, 2011 the Company’s securitized ci@lateralized by residential mortgage loans &audincipal balance of $242.0
million. The debt matures between the years 2021329038. At September 30, 2011 the debt carriedighted average cost of financing equal
to 5.49%. At December 31, 2010, the Company’ssizeed debt collateralized by residential mortgéggns had a principal balance of $303.1
million. The debt matures between the years 20232038. At December 31, 2010, the debt carriegighted average cost of financing equal
to 5.52%.

At September 30, 2011 the Company’s securitized, eeim-retained, collateralized by RMBS had a pgpatbalance of $1.8
billion. The debt matures between the years 20@862047. At September 30, 2011 the debt carri@dighted average cost of financing equi
5.10%. At December 31, 2010, the Company’s sezadtdebt, non-retained, collateralized by RMBS aatincipal balance of $2.0
billion. The debt matures between the years 20@62047. At December 31, 2010, the debt carriegighted average cost of financing equal
t0 5.17%.

The following table presents the estimated prindippayment schedule of the securitized debt andrg&zed debt, nometained held b
the Company at September 30, 2011 and Decemb@0230, based on expected cash flows of the resaentirtgage loans or RMBS, as
adjusted for projected losses, collateralizingdbbt. All of the securitized debt recorded in @@mpany’s consolidated statements of financial
condition is non-recourse to the Company.

September 31 December 3:

2011 201(C

(dollars in thousands
Within One Yeal $ 526,45' $ 634,98t
One to Three Yeat 682,98: 831,30!
Three to Five Year 287,91: 305,95:
Greater Than or Equal to Five Yei 429,54 417,97
Total $ 1,926,89' $ 2,190,22.

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt arpestelent upon cash flows received from the undeglioans. The estimate of their
repayment is based on scheduled principal paynoentse underlying loans. This estimate will diffesm actual amounts to the extent
prepayments and/or loan losses are experienceziN&e 4 for a more detailed discussion of thedaznilateralizing the securitized debt.

8. Consolidation
In June 2009, the FASB issued two new accountiagdstrds that amended guidance applicable to tlmuating for transfers of
financial assets and the consolidation of Varidbterest Entities (“VIES") (ASC 860 and ASC 810spectively). The primary effect of these

standards was to eliminate the concept of a QP Sthwiansferring assets and to remove the exemptiaQSPE when applying the
consolidation standard. The Company adopted theseaccounting standards as of January 1, 2010.
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The Company uses securitization trusts or variadtérest entities in its securitization andseszuritization transactions. Prior to Jant
1, 2010, these variable interest entities met #miion of QSPEs and, as such, were not subgecbhsolidation. Effective January 1, 2010, all
such variable interest entities were considereddoisolidation based on the criteria in ASC 810.

Per ASC 810, an entity shall consolidate a VIE wthext entity has a variable interest that provithesreporting entity with a controllit
financial interest. The assessment of the chaiatits of the reporting entity’s VIE shall considbe VIEs purpose and design. A controlling
financial interest is defined as (a) the powerited the activities of a VIE that most significgnimpact the VIEs economic performance and
the obligation to absorb losses of the VIE thatldqotentially be significant to the VIE and/or thight to receive benefits from the VIE that
could potentially be significant to the VIE.

Since the Company’s inception, the Company hagsenedlEs for the purpose of securitizing whole ngage loans or re-securitizing
RMBS and obtaining permanent, non-recourse teranfimg. The Company evaluated its interest in eachritization trust VIE to determine
the primary beneficiary status. The Company deitegththat seven trusts, one of which had been didiased since its inception, met the
requirements of consolidation. The Company deteechithat in these seven securitizations, basedaloliniy all of the subordinate interests, it
maintains the obligation to absorb losses andritht to receive benefits from the VIE that cob#&lsignificant to the VIE. In addition, the
Company had the power to direct activities of tlusttor was determined to have the ability to aairttie trust due to its contribution in the
purpose and design of the structure. The remaimigrusts evaluated did not meet the requiremint®nsolidate due to the inability to con
one of the trusts and the lack of obligations tsaab losses on the other trust.

VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Beneficia

Based on the Company’s consolidation evaluatiombmpany consolidated three VIEs on January 10 2@dt were not previously
consolidated and consolidated three VIEs thatiatyd during 2010. The Company’s retained bemfitierest is typically the subordinated
tranches of these re-securitizations and in sorsescthe Company may hold interests in additiomalcines. The effect is the inclusion of an
additional $2.0 billion of non-Agency RMBS at failue no longer retained by the Company and thiesman in its liabilities of $1.8 billion of
non-recourse securitized debt associated with tlesecuritizations.

The trusts are structured as pass through entitédseceive principal and interest on the undegdygollateral and distribute those
payments to the certificate holders. The asset#rer instruments held by the securitizationtestiare restricted in that they can only be used
to fulfill the obligations of the securitization &y. Additionally, the obligations of the secuzdtion entities do not have any recourse to the
general credit of any other consolidated subsigi&amor to the Company as the primary beneficiditye Company’s risks associated with its
involvement with these VIEs is limited to its riskad rights as a certificate holder of the bond&# retained. See Note 5 for a discussion of the
fair value measurement of the assets and lialsilitie

The assets of the securitization entities constditiay the Company are similar in nature to the @amy’s portfolio as a whole. The
securitization entities are all composed of RMB$hef quality and characteristics of assets refteotehe RMBS classifications found in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. Sate N for a discussion of the securities charastiesi of the portfolio.

The table below presents the assets and liabibfieensolidated entities as of January 1, 2010e dumulative effect adjustment

reflects the reversal of realized gains of $98.lioni previously recorded on the sales of theselp@ansolidated trusts net of the additional
accretion of discounts due to consolidating thetsu
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Carrying Value (1

(dollars in
thousands
Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior, no-retainec $ 1,114,03
Liabilities
Securitized debt, ni-retained 1,202,22:
Net assets and liabilities of newly consolidatetities (88,187)
Cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnirmsnuadoptior $ (88,187

(1) Carrying value represents the amount the assaikl have been recorded at in the consolidateahfiial statements at Januar
1, 2010 had they been recorded in the consolidatadcial statements on the date the Companyrfiedtthe conditions for
consolidation

The cumulative effect of adopting ASC 810 on Japuar2010 based on the shares outstanding on #étatwhs to reduce the beginning
book value of the Company by $0.13 per share.

The table below reflects the assets and liabilitee®rded in the consolidated statements of firrdmeindition related to the consolida
securitization entities as of September 30, 20HL.Recember 31, 2010.

September 30, 201 December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands

Assets
Non-Agency RMBS $ 3,608,721 $ 4,357,63.
Securitized loan 286,00 353,53
Liabilities
Securitized debt, n-retainec $ 1,753,22 $ 1,956,07!
Securitized debt, loans held for investm 230,76’ 289,23t

The consolidation of these securitization entitieseases both the income and expense recordéd ronsolidated statements of
operations for the Company as detailed in the tablew.

For the Quarter Ende
September 30, September 30,

2011 2010
(dollars in thousands
Interest income, ne¢-retainec $ 35,03( $ 55,08¢
Interest income, securitized loa 4,08t 6,88¢
Interest expense, n-retained 25,57¢ 32,23
Interest expense, securized lo 4,06¢ 8,33z
Net interest incom $ 9,472 $ 21,40

For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, September 30,

2011 2010

(dollars in thousand:
Interest income, nc-retainec $ 107,56¢ $ 169,72:
Interest income, securitized loa 12,78’ 17,95¢
Interest expense, n-retained 81,46: 87,48¢
Interest expense, securitized |o; 13,54( 17,89¢
Net interest incom $ 25,35¢ § 82,291

A discussion of the significant accounting policiégshe Company to record income and expense isded in Note 2 to these
consolidated financial statements. The effectduipding ASC 810 based on the weighted average sloatstanding had no material effect or
net interest income of the Company for the nine ti®ended September 30, 2011.

The effect of the consolidation of these secutitimaentities on the consolidated statements dfi flasvs for the Company is presented
in the table below for the periods presented.
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For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, September 30,

2011 2010
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings,-retainec $ 311,01 $ 1,127,87.
Payments on securitized debt borrowings,-retainec (520,73() (403,449
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, loans foelthvestmen (58,469 (70,684
(Accretion) amortization of debt issue costs ofusitized debt, no-retained 6,867 8,892
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest recei 3,70¢ 9,38¢
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa (1,247 (9,199
Net cash flows, nc-retainec $ (258,85) $ 662,82¢

VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Bierafy

The table below represents the carrying amountckasdification of assets recorded on the Commacghsolidated financial stateme
related to its variable interests in non-consobda¥IEs, as well as its maximum exposure to loss Esult of its involvement with these VIEs.

September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Amortized Cos Fair Value Amortized Cos Fair Value
(dollars in thousand:
Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 26 % 482 % 40C $ 55¢
Subordinate 3,02¢ 5,48( 5,42( 6,48¢
Agency RMBS 2,02( 1,86¢ 2,68( 2,53(
Total $ 531¢ $ 7830 $ 8,50( $ 9,57¢

The Company’s involvement with VIEs for which itnst the primary beneficiary generally are in thef of purchasing securities
issued by the trusts similar to its investmentstirer RMBS that are not part of a trust it has eatdd for consolidation. The Company’s
maximum exposure to loss in these entities is sgmed by the fair value of these assets. Thisatrdoes not include OTTI or other write-
downs that the Company previously recognized thnceegnings.

9. Interest Rate Swaps

In connection with the Company'’s interest rate rns&knagement strategy, the Company economicallydsedgortion of its interest rate
risk by entering into derivative financial instrumieontracts. These derivative financial instrutr@mtracts do not qualify as hedges under ,
815, Derivatives and Hedging As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 0 instruments are comprised of interest ratgsywahich
in effect modify the cash flows on repurchase ages®s. The use of interest rate swaps createses@to credit risk relating to potential los
that could be recognized if the counterpartiehé&sé instruments fail to perform their obligatiomsier the contracts. In the event of a default by
the counterparty, the Company could have difficolyaining its RMBS pledged as collateral for swaphe Company does not anticipate any
defaults by its counterparties.

The Company’s swaps are used to lock in a fixeel raated to a portion of its current and anti@patpurchase agreements.

The table below summarizes the location and fdirevaf interest rate swaps reported in the Conat#idi Statements of Financial
Condition as of September 30, 2011 and Decembe2®N).
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Location on
Consolidated

Statement of Net Estimated Fair
Financial Net Estimated Fair Value of RMBS
Condition Notional Amount Value/Carrying Value¢  Pledged as Collater

(dollars in thousands

September 30, 201 Assets $ - % - $ -
September 30, 201 Liabilities $ 950,00( $ (44,970 $ 50,41!
December 31, 201 Assets $ - % - 3 1
December 31, 201 Liabilities $ 450,000 $ (9,989 $ 12,81

The effect of the Company’s interest rate swaptherConsolidated Statements of Operations and Gatmepsive Income (LosS) is
presented below.

Location on Consolidated
Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss
Realized Gains Unrealized Gain

(Losses) on (Losses) on
Interest Interest
Rate Swap Rate Swap

(dollars in thousands

For the Quarter Ende

September 30, 201 $ (4,500 $ (25,31))
September 30, 201 $ (2,499 $ (13,58
For the Nine Months Ende

September 30, 201 $ (11,649 $ (34,98))
September 30, 201 $ (3,199 $ (24,82()

The weighted average pay rate on the Company’seisiteate swaps at September 30, 2011 was 2.08%harnekighted average receive
rate was 0.23%. The weighted average pay ratheo@ompanys interest rate swaps at September 30, 2010 wa%o2ahd the weighted avere
receive rate was 0.26%. Without netting the maviadie of the swaps by dealer at September 30, 2B&ross unrealized loss on interest rate
swaps was $45.0 million, with a notional amoun$®$0.0 million. Without netting the market valuetlee swaps by dealer, at September 30,
2010 the gross unrealized loss on interest ratpswas $24.8 million, with a notional amount of @4bmillion.

The Company enters into interest rate swap comstraith counterparties utilizing standard InternaibSwap Dealers Association
Master Agreements (“ISDA”) that create exposureretlit risk relating to potential losses that cooddrecognized if the counterparties to these
instruments fail to perform their obligations undlee contracts. These ISDAs have terms and cotertde breach of which would permit the
counterparty to terminate the agreement at the timen the Company is in a net loss position.

10. Common Stock

On January 28, 2011 the Company entered into aityedjstribution agreement with FIDAC and UBS Setias LLC
(“UBS”). Through this agreement, the Company malythrough UBS, as its sales agent, up to 1250@@shares of its common stock in
ordinary brokers’ transactions at market pricestber transactions as agreed between the CompahyR8. The Company did not sell any
shares of its common stock under the equity distidim agreement during the nine months ended Sdyete80, 2011.

On September 24, 2009, the Company implementedi@edid reinvestment and share purchase plan (“DRSPPe DRSPP provides
holders of record of its common stock an opportfutdtautomatically reinvest all or a portion of itheash distributions received on common
stock in additional shares of our common stock el & to make optional cash payments to purchaaes of our common stock. Persons who
are not already stockholders may also purchaseamamon stock under the plan through optional castments. The DRSPP is administere:
the Administrator, The Bank of New York Mellon. D the nine months ended September 30, 2011 thegp&oy raised $786 thousand by
issuing 214,000 shares through the DRSPP. Duriagitie months ended September 30, 2010 the Contpa®g $263 thousand by issuing
68,000 shares through the DRSPP.
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During the quarter ended September 30, 2011 thep@oyndeclared dividends to common shareholderBrtgt$i133.4 million, or $0.1
per share. During the quarter ended Septembet(@®, the Company declared dividends to commoresiatders totaling $158.8 million, or
$0.18 per share.

During the nine months ended September 30, 201Cdnepany declared dividends to common sharehotdeablng $410.5 million, or
$0.40 per share. During the nine months endedeSdqar 30, 2010, the Company declared dividendsrimmon shareholders totaling $403.0
million, or $0.52 per share.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarabrgf September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010.
11. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptareto provide incentives to its independentates and employees of FIDAC
and its affiliates, to stimulate their efforts taws the Company’s continued success, long-term tirawd profitability and to attract, reward and
retain personnel and other service providers. iltentive plan authorizes the Compensation Comeniifehe board of directors to grant
awards, including incentive stock options, non-iigal stock options, restricted shares and otheesyof incentive awards. The specific award
granted to an individual is based upon, in pad,itidividual’s position within FIDAC, the individlia position within the Company, his or her
contribution to the Company’s performance, markatfices, as well as the recommendations of FIDAGe incentive plan authorizes the
granting of options or other awards for an aggregéathe greater of 8.0% of the outstanding shaféise Company’s common stock up to a
ceiling of 40,000,000 shares.

On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restrattadk awards in the amount of 1,301,000 share$DAE€’'s employees and the
Company’s independent directors. The awards tandhependent directors vested on the date of gnaeshthe awards to FIDAG’employees ve
guarterly over a period of 10 years. Of theseeshas of September 30, 2011, 511,000 shares leatedvand 45,000 shares were forfeited or
cancelled.

As of September 30, 2011 there was $14.0 milliototzl unrecognized compensation costs relatedtevested share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the lomgineentive plan, based on the closing price efghares on the grant date. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a weigldaedrage period of 6.3 years. The total fair valughares vested, less those forfeited, during tteste|
ended September 30, 2011 was $111 thousand, bagkd olosing price of the stock on the vestingdat

12. Income Taxes

As long as the Company qualifies as a REIT, the @y is not subject to Federal income tax to thergxthat it makes qualifying
distributions to its stockholders, and providesgatisfies on a continuing basis, through actuatstment and operating results, the REIT
requirements including certain asset, income, iligion and stock ownership tests. Most statesgeize REIT status as well. During the
quarter ended September 30, 2011 the Company extardeduction of its estimated federal and stateme tax expense related to earnings of
its TRS in the amount of $171 thousand. Duringgharter ended September 30, 2010, the Companydet$752 thousand in income tax
expense related to federal REIT excise tax duerasudt of a shortfall in the Company’s 2009 disiitions as compared to the amount required
under applicable law.

In general, common stock cash dividends declareithéy"ompany will be considered ordinary incomsttkholders for income tax
purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capitasgai return of capital. For the quarters
ended September 30, 2011 and December 31, 201Qothpany estimates that all income distributedhenform of dividends will be
characterized as ordinary income.

The Company files tax returns in several U.S. dlictions, including New York State and New York\CitThe 2007 through 2010 tax
years remain open to U.S. federal, state and tagadxaminations.
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13. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeglit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to interest rate risk in
connection with its investments in Agency and nayeAcy residential mortgage loans and credit sepsRIMBS. When the Company assumes
interest rate risk, it attempts to minimize inténade risk through asset selection, hedging antmreg the income earned on mortgage assets
with the cost of related liabilities. The Compasyubject to interest rate risk, primarily in cextion with its investments in fixed-rate and
adjustable-rate RMBS, residential mortgage loand,kmorrowings under repurchase agreements. Thep@woyrattempts to minimize credit risk
through due diligence and asset selection by psmbdoans underwritten to agreed-upon specificatiof selected originators. The Company
has established a whole loan target market incuginme borrowers with FICO scores generally gnetiten 650, Alt-A documentation,
geographic diversification, owner-occupied propeatyd moderate loan to value ratio. These faetronsidered to be important indicators of
credit risk.

14. Management Agreement and Related Party Transtions

The Company has entered into a management agreeriteiIDAC, which provided for an initial term thmgh December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestibo certain termination rights. On Novembey 2810, the Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors renewed the management agreethrough December 31, 2011. The Company pllyAE a quarterly management fee
equal to 1.50% per annum of the gross Stockholdggaity (as defined in the management agreemerntjeo€ompany.

Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for tleatgrs ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 werg 8iilion and $11.3 million
respectively. Management fees accrued and pdtxaC for the nine months ended September 30, 20112010 were $39.2 million and
$28.7 million, respectively.

The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC forcibsts incurred under the management agreemeriddition, the management
agreement permits FIDAC to require the Companyatpfpr its pro rata portion of rent, telephonelitigis, office furniture, equipment,
machinery and other office, internal and overhegzbases that FIDAC incurred in connection with @@mpany’s operations. These expenses
are allocated between FIDAC and the Company baseHdeoratio of the Company’s proportion of grossesis compared to all remaining gross
assets managed by FIDAC as calculated at eacheqq@snd. FIDAC and the Company will modify thisoaltion methodology, subject to the
approval of the Compang’board of directors if the allocation becomes uizdple (i.e., if the Company becomes very higlelydraged compar:
to FIDAC's other funds and accounts). During thiader and nine months ended September 30, 201Cdimpany reimbursed FIDAC
approximately $166 thousand and $482 thousanduithr expenses. During the quarter and nine monttisdce8eptember 30, 2010, the Comp
reimbursed FIDAC approximately $177 thousand ar24$Bousand for such expenses.

On March 1, 2011, the Company entered into an adtraive services agreement with RCap Securities (“RCap”). RCap is a SEC
registered broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsjddf Annaly, to clear its securities trades ai@hR receives customary market-based fees
and charges in return for such services. RCapatsayprovide brokerage services to the Compamy fime to time. During the quarter and
nine months ended September 30, 2011, fees p&RECAP were $58 thousand and $113 thousand, resphctiv

During the quarters ended September 30, 2011 auigi@ber 30, 2010, 32,000 shares and 48,000 shfarestiicted stock issued by t
Company to FIDAC’s employees vested, respectivegdydiscussed in Note 11. During the quarter esdggdember 30, 2011 and September 30,
2010, 226 shares and 17,000 shares of restriatel sisued by the Company to FIDAC’s employees Vierfeited, respectively.

During the nine months ended September 30, 201B5aptember 30, 2010, 95,000 shares and 114,008ssbirestricted stock issued
by the Company to FIDAC’s employees vested, resgalgt During the nine months ended SeptembeB8Q1 and September 30, 2010, 1,700
shares and 20,000 shares of restricted stock isgsutite Company to FIDAC’s employees were forfeitesgpectively.

In April 2009, the Company entered into a Secwsitiedustry and Financial Markets Association statigeieprinted form Master
Repurchase Agreement with RCap Securities, Inds §tandard agreement does not contain any stiguidity, net worth or other similar types
of positive or negative covenants. Rather, theagent contains covenants that require the buykseller of securities to deliver collateral or
securities, and similar covenants which are custgrimamaster repurchase agreements. At Septentheé@0d.1 and December 31, 2010, the
Company had no financing under this agreement.ddrepany has been in compliance with all covenaintisi® agreement since it entered into
this agreement.
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In March 2008, the Company entered into a Secaritidustry and Financial Markets Association statgaeprinted form Master
Repurchase Agreement with Annaly. This standardexgent does not contain any sort of liquidity, wetth or other similar types of positive
negative covenants. Rather, the agreement cortaugnants that require the buyer and seller afritézs to deliver collateral or securities, and
similar covenants which are customary in masteungpase agreements. At September 30, 2011 andvibece31, 2010, the Company had no
financing under this agreement. The Company has Imeeompliance with all covenants of this agreens#mce it entered into this agreement.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become involnegharious claims and legal actions arising indhéinary course of
business. Management is not aware of any unrepodetingencies at September 30, 2011.

16. Subsequent Events
None.

17. Immaterial Restatements

The Company made correcting restatements to imfiial statements as of December 31, 2010 andhéathtee and nine months ended
September 30, 2010 related to the application d€ 835-40,Investments — Other, Beneficial Interests in Séized Financial Assets
Additionally, the Company has restated its pregemtaf interest expense on swaps and amortizatiaiebt issue costs . Wh ile these
restatements will have an impact on the reportedBAet income (loss) for each historical periodemelvaluation, the Company does not
believe that these restatements are ma teriad fmancial statements as of December 31, 201Ga@rttie three and nine months ended
September 30, 2010. These restatements have b effche Company’s previously reported book valisenet increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents as presented in our historicab@atated Statement of Cash Flows, nor its taxadgeme which is the basis of the Company’s

dividend distributions.
Statements.

For additional information these restatements, see Note 2(a), Basiesémation, in our Consolidated Financial

The following table sets forth the effects of tlustments to net income as of and for the thresthsoand nine months ending

September 30, 2010.

Increase/Decrease in Net Income (Loss) to CommaneBlolder:
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzisg

Previously reported Net Incon
Restated Account Adjustmer
Interest Incom:
Interest expens
Interest Income Non-Retained
Sul-total Interest Incom
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss:
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in OCI
Net othe-thar-temporary impairment loss
Realized gains (losses) on interest rate s\
Realized losses on principal write-downs of non-AgeRMBS

Total Adjustments

Restated Net Income (Loss) to Common Stockholders

(unaudited’

For the Quarter
ended September

For the Nine
Months ended

30, 201C September 30, 20:

$ 126,43 $ 376,62
(722) (982)

2,49: 3,192

(3,002) 10,94:

(1,23)) 13,15:

(50,609 (86,389

41,67¢ 45,60(

(8,937 (40,789

(2,497 (3,197

2,51 3,792

(10,139 (27,036

$ 116,29¢ $ 349,58t
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The following table sets forth the effects of tlilgustments on affected line items within the Comypas previously reported
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprareheome (Loss) for the three months and ninetimoending September 30, 2010.

Consolidated Statement of Operations and ComprérehTome (Loss
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slziag

(unaudited’

For the Quarter ended
September 30, 201

For the Nine Months ended
September 30, 201

As Previously

As Previously

Reportec Restate( Reportec Restate(
Statement of Operation
Interest income $ 140,40t $ 139,68: $ 402,91. $ 401,92¢
Interest income, nc-retainec $ 58,09C $ 55,08¢ $ 158,78( $ 169,72:
Interest Expens $ 10,527 $ 8,03 $ 25,09¢ $ 21,907
Net Interest Incom $ 155,73: $ 154,500 $ 449,10 $ 462,25'
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: $ 1,319 $ (51,92) $ 48,747 $ (135,13f)
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other coef@nsive
income $ 43¢ % 42,11: % 38,43. $ 84,03:
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ 876 $ (9,810 $ (10,315 $ (51,109
Realized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ $ - $ (2,499 $ - % (3,197
Realized losses on principal w-downs on no-Agency RMBS  $ (2,519) $ - % 3,792 $ =
Total other gains (losse $ (14,068 $ (14,049 $ (26,23¢) $ (25,63%)
Net investment income (los $ 140,78 $ 130,64t $ 41255, $ 385,51!
Net Income (Loss $ 126,43 $ 116,29t $ 376,62: $ 349,58t
Net income per sha-basic and dilute: $ 014 $ 0.1z $ 0.4¢ $ 0.4t
Comprehensive incom

Net income (loss $ 126,43 $ 116,29¢ $ 376,62 $ 349,58t
Unrealized gain (losses) on securities avai-for-sale $ 20,40¢ $ 24,13: $ 110,46 $ 100,50
Reclassification adjustment for net losses incluidetie net
income (loss) for other-than-temporary credit innpegnt losses

$ 87¢ $ 9,81( $ 10,31t $ 51,10¢
Reclassification adjustment for realized lossem@ancluded ir
net income (loss $ 48t $ (2,03) $ 141t $ (2,379
Other comprehensive income (lo $ 21,77 $ 31,91C $ 122,19¢ $ 149,23«
Comprehensive income (los $ 148,20t $ 148,20t $ 498,82: $ 498,82.

The following table sets forth the effects of thiustments on affected line items within the Compspreviously reported

Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition aB@&fember 31, 2010.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condi
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzisg

(unaudited’
December 31, 201
As Previously
Reportec Restate(
Stockholders Equity
Accumulated other comprehensive inca $ 274,65. $ 321,53°
Retained earnings (accumulated defi $ (203,796 $ (250,68
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Balance, December 31, 20
Net income (loss
Other comprehensive income

(loss)

Balance, September 30, 20
Balance, December 31, 20

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholyisity
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slziag

(unaudited’

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Los

As Previously As Previously
Reportec Restatec Reportec

$ (99,759 $ (99,759 $ (70,99) $

$ - $ - $ 376,62: $

$ 122,19¢ $ 149,23: $ - 3

$ 22,44 $ 49,48( $ (185,579 $

$ 274,65. $ 321,53 $ (203,79¢) $

Retained Earnings
(Accumulated Deficit

The following table sets forth the effects of tlilgustments on affected line items within the Comypas previously reported
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&epsity for September 30, 2010 and December 310201

Total Stockholders' Equit
As Previously

Restatec Reportec
(70,99) $ 2,126,56: $
349,58t -
(212,619 $ 2,902,34 %
(250,68 $ 3,683,000 $

Restatec
2,126,56:

2,902,34
3,683,001

The following table sets forth the effects of tligustments on affected line items within our presgly reported Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months eSeégdember 30, 2010, with no effect on the net egegdecrease) in cash and cash
equivalents for the period.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flc

(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzisg

(unaudited

Cash Flows From Operating Activitie

Net income (loss

(Accretion) amortization of investment discountefpiums

(Accretion) amortization of debt issue costs ofusitized debt, no-retained
Realized losses on principal wi-downs of no-Agency RMBS

Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash Flows From Financing Activitie
Payments on securitized debt borrowings,-retainec
Net cash provided by financing activiti

Non-cash investing activitie
Net change in unrealized gain on avail-for sale securitie
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For the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 201
As Previously

Reportec Restate(
$ 376,62« $ 349,58t¢
$ (187,869 $ (197,830()
$ - % 8,897
$ 3,79: $ -
$ 10,31 $ 51,10«
$ 225,43 $ 234,32«
$ (394,55) $ (403,449
$ 665,26¢ $ 656,37t
$ 122,19¢ $ 149,23




ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

We make forward-looking statements in this reploat fire subject to risks and uncertainties. Thesedaird-looking statements include
information about possible or assumed future resaflour business, financial condition, liquiditgsults of operations, plans and objectives.
When we use the words “believe,” “expect,” “dicipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “continue,” * ‘intend,” “should,” “may,” “would,” “will”
or similar expressions, we intend to identify forddooking statements. Statements regarding thewiong subjects, among others, are forward-
looking by their nature:

LT LLNT} Mo Mo Mo

« our business and investment strategy;

« our projected financial and operating results;

« our ability to maintain existing financing arrangemis, obtain future financing arrangements andeiras of such arrangements;
« general volatility of the securities markets in eive invest;

- the impact of and changes to various governmergrpros;

« our expected investments;

« changes in the value of our investments;

« interest rate mismatches between our investmewt®anborrowings used to fund such purchases;

« changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayrats; r

« effects of interest rate caps on our adjustableiratestments;

« rates of default or decreased recovery rates oimgastments;

- prepayments of the mortgage and other loans uridgrbur mortgage-backed or other asset-backed isesur
« the degree to which our hedging strategies mayay mot protect us from interest rate volatility;

» impact of and changes in governmental regulatitanslaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simiktters;
« availability of investment opportunities in reatae-related and other securities;

« availability of qualified personnel,

« estimates relating to our ability to make distribns to our stockholders in the future;

« our understanding of our competition;

- market trends in our industry, interest rates,délet securities markets or the general economy;

« our ability to maintain our classification as a REdr federal income tax purposes; and

« our ability to maintain our exemption from regisitoa under the Investment Company Act of 1940.
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The forwardlooking statements are based on our beliefs, assumspand expectations of our future performanaleng into account a
information currently available to us. You shoulut place undue reliance on these forward-lookiageshents. These beliefs, assumptions and
expectations can change as a result of many pessilints or factors, not all of which are knowngoSome of these factors are described unde
the caption “Risk Factors” in our most recent Arat Report on Form 10-K and any subsequent QugiRaports on Form 10-Q. If a change
occurs, our business, financial condition, liquidihd results of operations may vary materiallyrfrihhose expressed in our forward-looking
statements. Any forward-looking statement speakg as of the date on which it is made. New riskd ancertainties arise from time to time,
and it is impossible for us to predict those eventsow they may affect us. Except as requirethlby we are not obligated to, and do not intend
to, update or revise any forward-looking statementwether as a result of new information, futurergs or otherwise.

32




Executive Summary

We acquire, either directly or indirectly throughrsubsidiaries, residential mortgage-backed seesirior RMBS, residential mortgage
loans, commercial mortgage loans, real estatesgblstcurities and various other asset classesar®\externally managed by Fixed Income
Discount Advisory Company, which we refer to as RDor our Manager. FIDAC is a fixed-income investthmanagement company that is
registered as an investment adviser with the Séesiand Exchange Commission, or SEC. FIDAC isally owned subsidiary of Annaly
Capital Management, Inc., or Annaly. FIDAC hasadd range of experience in managing investmendgency RMBS, which are mortgage
pass-through certificates, collateralized mortgalgiggations, or CMOs, and other RMBS representirigriests in or obligations backed by pools

of mortgage loans issued or guaranteed by Fanneg Maddie Mac, and Ginnie Mae, non-Agency RMB3%ateralized debt obligations, or
CDOs, and other real estate related investments.

We have elected and intend to qualify to be taxed REIT for federal income tax purposes commenwiitig our taxable year ended
December 31, 2007. Our targeted asset classebamdincipal investments we expect to make in eaehas follows:

Asset Class Principal Investments

RMBS e Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade @on-
investment grade
classes, including the BB-rated, B-rated aoxl-rated
classes.

e Agency RMBS.

Residential Mortgage Loans e Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage |tizaus

conform to the
underwriting guidelines of Fannie Mae améddgie Mac,
which we
refer to as Agency Guidelines; and jumbdmprmortgage
loans, which
are mortgage loans that conform to the Agebuidelines
except as

to loan size.

e Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage lotrzg may
have been
originated using documentation standardsdhe less
stringent than
the documentation standards applied byacedther first
lien mortgage
loan purchase programs, such as the Agénayelines,
but have one
or more compensating factors such as aenrwith a
strong credit or
mortgage history or significant assets.

° FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage ®#mat
comply to the
underwriting guidelines of the Federal Kiog
Administration (FHA)
or Department of Veteran Affairs (VA) amthich are
guaranteed by
the FHA or VA, respectively.

° Mortgage servicing rights associated with residgnti
mortgage loans,
which reflect the value of the future atreof expected
cash flows from

the contractual rights to service a gipeol of residential
mortgage loans.

Commercial Mortgage Loans ° First or second lien loans secured by muitifa
properties, which are
residential rental properties consistifi§i@ or more
dwelling units;
and mixed residential or other commerpralperties;



retail properties;
office properties; or industrial propestigvhich may or
may not conform
to the Agency Guidelines.

Other Asset-Backed Securities e CMBS.
° Debt and equity tranches of CDOs.
e  Consumer and non-consumer ABS, includingstment-
grade and
non-investment grade classes, includieg3B-rated, B-

rated and
noi-rated classe:
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Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubsteturns to our investors over the long-term, gritg through dividends and
secondarily through capital appreciation. We idtemachieve this objective by investing in a brokas of financial assets to construct an
investment portfolio that is designed to achieveaative riskadjusted returns and that is structured to comjitlly the various federal income t
requirements for REIT status and to maintain o@ngption from the Investment Company Act of 1940ther 1940 Act.

Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquiriog-Agency RMBS and on
purchasing residential mortgage loans that have beginated by select high-quality originators;liding the retail lending operations of
leading commercial banks. Our investment portf@iaveighted toward non-Agency RMBS. At Septent@r2011 approximately 71.6% of
our investment portfolio’s principal value was nAgency RMBS, 25.5% of our investment portfolio’snmipal value was Agency RMBS, and
2.9% of our investment portfolio’s principal valuas secured residential mortgage loans. At DeceBihe2010, approximately 83.4% of our
investment portfolio’s principal value was non-AggrRMBS, 12.6% of our investment portfolgoprincipal value was Agency RMBS, and 4.
of our investment portfolio’s principal value wascsred residential mortgage loans. We expectothat the near term our investment portfolio
will continue to be weighted toward RMBS, subjextriaintaining our REIT qualification and our 1946t &xemption.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adwgntd opportunities in the current interest ratd aredit environment. We will adjust
our strategy to changing market conditions by sigfour asset allocations across these various elssses as interest rate and credit cycles
change over time. We believe that our strategmhbined with FIDAC's experience, will enable us &yplividends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing market cycles. ekfeect to take a long-term view of assets andlilia@is, and our reported earnings and mark-
to-market valuations at the end of a financial répg period will not significantly impact our olgve of providing attractive risk-adjusted
returns to our stockholders over the long-term.

We use leverage to seek to increase our poteptialins and to fund the acquisition of our asségr income is generated primarily by
the difference, or net spread, between the incomearn on our assets and the cost of our borrowigs expect to finance our investments
using a variety of financing sources including, whaailable, repurchase agreements, warehouséiéscisecuritizations, commercial paper i
term financing CDOs. We may manage our debt Hizimti interest rate hedges, such as interestswatps, to reduce the effect of interest rate
fluctuations related to our debt.

Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be tfteby various factors, many of which are beyondamutrol. Our results of
operations will primarily depend on, among othéndjs, the level of our net interest income, thekatwalue of our assets, and the supply of and
demand for such assets. Our net interest incorhiehweflects the amortization of purchase premiamd accretion of discounts, varies
primarily as a result of changes in interest rabestowing costs, credit impairment losses, ang@yenent speeds, which is a measurement of
how quickly borrowers pay down the unpaid principalance on their mortgage loans.
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Prepayment Speed®repayment speeds, as reflected by the Constepayment Rate, or CPR, vary according to inteadss, the typ
of investment, conditions in financial markets, atider factors, none of which can be predicted it certainty. In general, when interest
rates rise, it is relatively less attractive fortoovers to refinance their mortgage loans, and@salt, prepayment speeds tend to decrease.
interest rates fall, prepayment speeds tend te#asa. For mortgage loan and RMBS investments psedhat a premium, as prepayment speeds
increase, the amount of income we earn decreasasi$e the purchase premium we paid for the bondstiaes faster than
expected. Conversely, decreases in prepaymendspesult in increased income and can extend ttiedpever which we amortize the purchase
premium. For mortgage loan and RMBS investmentstmased at a discount, as prepayment speeds incteasemount of income we earn
increases because of the acceleration of the amti@ftthe discount into interest income. Converseécreases in prepayment speeds result in
decreased income and can extend the period ovehwte accrete the purchase discount into intenestme. In the recent past, the correlation
between falling interest rates and increasing pneygat speeds has not evidenced itself for certssertaclasses. Due to continuing economic
hardship in the general economy, some borrowers haen unable to refinance their loans to lowenrést rates as credit conditions remain
restrictive.

Rising Interest Rate EnvironmentAs indicated above, as interest rates rise, gyment speeds generally decrease. Rising interes
however, increase our financing costs which mayltés a net negative impact on our net interesbime. In addition, if we acquire Agency ¢
non-Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly resetuatible-rate mortgages, or ARMs, and three- areyfear hybrid ARMs, such interest rate
increases could result in decreases in our nestment income, as there could be a timing mismbétiveen the interest rate reset dates on our
RMBS portfolio and the financing costs of theseeistynents. We expect, that our fixed-rate assetsdadecline in value in a rising interest rate
environment and that our net interest spreadsxa fiate assets could decline in a rising inter@stenvironment to the extent such assets are
financed with floating rate debt.

Falling Interest Rate EnvironmentAs interest rates fall, prepayment speeds génénarease. Falling interest rates, however,
decrease our financing costs which may resultrietgpositive impact on our net interest incomeaddition, if we acquire Agency and non-
Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly reset adjukterate mortgages, or ARMs, and three- and fivarygbrid ARMs, such interest rate
decreases could result in increases in our nestmant income, as there could be a timing mismbgédtveen the interest rate reset dates on our
RMBS portfolio and the financing costs of theseeistynents. We expect, however, that our fixed-aiasets would increase in value in a falling
interest rate environment and that our net intespigads on fixed rate assets could increaseatirgfinterest rate environment to the extent
such assets are financed with floating rate debt.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is acquiring assetshalie believe to be of high credit quality. Weibeé this strategy will
generally keep our credit losses and financingsclost. We also focus on acquiring distressed ngefty RMBS that have been downgraded
because of defaults in the mortgages collatergigzich RMBS. When we acquire such RMBS we attémpurchase it at a price such that its
loss-adjusted return profile is in line with ourgated yields. We retain the risk of potentialditéosses on all of the residential mortgage loans
we hold in our portfolio as well as all of the ndigency RMBS. We attempt to mitigate credit risklie asset selection process. Prior to the
purchase of investments, we conduct a credit-ridel analysis of the collateral securing our imaest that includes examining borrower
characteristics, geographic concentrations, cuaedtprojected delinquencies, current and projeste@rities, and actual and expected
prepayment speeds among other characteristicsrtaufate expected losses.

Size of Investment PortfolioThe size of our investment portfolio, as meadimgthe aggregate unpaid principal balance of our
mortgage loans and aggregate principal balancerofortgage related securities and the other assetsvn is also a key revenue
driver. Generally, as the size of our investmantfplio grows, the amount of interest income weeiige increases. The larger investment
portfolio, however, drives increased expenses amuwg additional interest expense to finance theelpase of our assets.
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Financial Condition
Immaterial Restatement

As discussed in Notes 2 and 17 to the accompamyngolidated financial statements, we are makistatements to certain of our
historical consolidated financial statements. Wikele these restatements are immaterial, indivighal in the aggregate to our financial results
for any previous reported period. Management'sBision and Analysis references to prior periodetzeen revised for the effects of the
restatements.

Estimated Economic Book Valu

This Management Discussion and Analysis sectioaios analysis and discussion of financial infoiiorathat utilizes or presents
ratios based on GAAP book value. The table ancudision below present our estimated economic bablev We calculate and disclose this
non-GAAP measurement because we believe it repiesen estimated economic book value at the meammredate.

On January 1, 2010 GAAP required us to consolidat&ain re-securitization transactions we consurathdtiring 2009 and 2010. In
these re-securitizations, we transferred assetetoe-securitization trusts, which issued tranafesenior and subordinate notes or
certificates. We sold the senior tranches ancefbez have no continuing involvement in these srasher than being a holder of notes or
certificates issued by the trusts, with the sambtsi of other holders of the notes or certificat€ébe notes and certificates we own that were
issued by the trusts are largely subordinatedestsrin those trusts. The trusts have no recdorger assets other than pursuant to a breach by
us of the transaction documents related to thesteammf the assets by us to the trusts.

GAAP requires us to fair value and present thetassfehese trusts on our consolidated statemédtritsamcial condition as if we still
owned the underlying securities we transferredhéottusts. We present the assets related to tisotidated trusts in our consolidated statem
of financial position as a component of non-AgeRBS identified as senior, non-retained, and thbilities as securitized debt, non-
retained. We have fair valued the underlying siéesrwe transferred to the trusts for the caléatabf GAAP book value in accordance with
pricing policy, as described more fully in our @dtl accounting estimates, and recorded the coorefipg liability for the notes or certificates
sold to third parties. Fair value adjustments #ratnot credit related are recorded in Other Celmgmsive Income. Credit related impairments
are deemed other-than-temporary and are recordeafivings.

However, because we are unable to sell the undegrksecurities we transferred into the trusts asevionger own those securities, we
also present our estimated economic book value.b&lieve this measure represents the estimatee wdlihe securities issued by these trusts
that we own. In contrast to GAAP book value, ostireated economic book value considers only thetasge own or are able to dispose of,
pledge, or otherwise monetize. To determine otimased economic book value, we fair value the siatecertificates issued by the re-
securitization trusts that we actually own in ademrce with our pricing policy. Accordingly, ourtiesated economic book value does not
include assets or liabilities for which we haveaomtinuing involvement, specifically the notes ertificates of the re-securitization trusts that
were sold to third parties. We believe this eat@represents the value of the assets that werold portfolio should we decide to sell,
pledge, or otherwise dispose of assets as of tlasunement date.

At September 30, 2011 the difference between GAddklvalue and estimated economic book value wasméied to be $260.6
million. At December 31, 2010 the difference beaw&AAP book value and estimated economic bookevaiais determined to be $374.5
million. This difference is primarily driven by émature of the assets we have retained in thesecrgitization transactions as compared to the
nature of underlying securities in these transastidn these re-securitization transactions, viemed the subordinated, typically non-rated, first
loss notes or certificates issued by the re-sezatibn trusts. These securities are complexcblihi locked out as to principal repayment,
relatively illiquid, and do not necessarily appegeior depreciate in tandem with the broader noergg RMBS market or with the underlying
securities owned by the trusts. The tables bel@sent the adjustments to GAAP book value that @lieve necessary to adequately reflect our
calculation of estimated economic book value aSegtember 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010.
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Assets:
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vali
Senior
Subordinate(
Senior, no-retained
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vall
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aloae for loan losse
Other current assets

Total assets

Repurchase agreeme;
Securitized dek

Securitized debt, n-retained
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

Book Value Per Share

Assets:
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vali
Senior
Subordinatec
Senior, no-retained
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vali
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aloee for loan losse
Other current assets

Total assets

Repurchase agreeme!
Securitized dek

Securitized debt, n«-retained
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

Book Value Per Share
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September 30, 201.

Estimated
Economic
GAAP Book Book
Value Adjustments Value
(dollars in thousands
$ 321,48 $ - 8 321,48
2,074,40! - 2,074,40!
2,013,79 (2,013,79) -
4,952,72. - 4,952,72.
286,00 - 286,00
65,78¢ 65,78¢

$ 09,714,200 $ (2,013,79) $ 7,700,40

4,171,191 - 4,171,191
230,76 - 230,76°
1,753,22 (1,753,22) -
204,95 - 204,95
6,360,13! (1,753,22) 4,606,90:
3,354,06' (260,57() 3,093,49'

$ 9,714,200 $ (2,013,79) $ 7,700,40

$ 3.27 $ (0.2 $ 3.01

December 31, 201!

Estimated
GAAP Book Economic
Value Adjustments Book Value
(dollars in thousands

$ 987,68¢ $ - $ 987,68
2,210,85! - 2,210,85!
2,330,56! (2,330,56)) -
2,133,58 - 2,133,58
353,53: - 353,53:
57,47: - 57,47:

$ 8,073,700 $ (2,330,56) $ 5,743,13;

1,808,79 - 1,808,79
289,23 - 289,23
1,956,07" (1,956,07) -
336,58: - 336,58;
4,390,60. (1,956,07) 2,434,61
3,683,001 (374,48) 3,308,51

$ 8,073,700 $ (2,330,56) $ 5,743,13

$ 3.5¢ $ (0.3 $ 3.2¢




Our estimate of economic book value has importamitdtions. Our estimate of fair value is as gfant in time and subject to
significant judgment. Other market participantsyrdarive a different fair value for each asset thencalculate. Should we sell the assets ir
portfolio, we may realize materially different pesds from the sale than we have estimated as oéploeting date.

Although we believe that the calculation of estietaéconomic value described above helps our maregeand investors understand
the fair value of the assets we own and the litdblifor which we are legally obligated, it is ohited usefulness as an analytical tool. It doat
take account of the fair value of assets that waat@wn, but regarding which we will be the pripedi beneficiary of increases in value above,
and will bear the principal burden of reductiony@lue to below, what currently is anticipated.efiéfore, the estimated economic book value
should not be viewed in isolation and is not a stuie for book value computed in accordance withAB.

Portfolio Review

At September 30, 2011 our portfolio consisted a#i$#llion of non-Agency RMBS, $5.0 billion of Agep RMBS, at fair value, and
$286.0 million of securitized mortgage loans, abdimed cost. At December 31, 2010, our portfolimsisted of $5.5 billion of non-Agency
RMBS, $2.1 billion of Agency RMBS and $353.5 mitiof securitized mortgage loans.

The following table summarizes certain charactiessaf our portfolio at September 30, 2011 and 2@h@ December 31, 2010. Asset

types under “Portfolio Composition, at principaluel’ represent the issued trust certificates andh®underlying collateral held by the variable
interest entities consolidated pursuant to ASC 810:

September 30, September 30, December 31,

2011 2010 2010
Interest earning assets at pe-end * $ 964842 $ 7,173,370 $ 8,016,22
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 6,15518' $ 3,844,441 $  4,054,11.
Leverage at peric-end 1.8:1 1.3:1 1.1:1
Leverage at peri-end (recourse 1.2:1 0.5:1 0.5:1
Portfolio Composition, at principal valt
Non-Agency RMBS 71.6% 82.8% 83.4%
Senior 0.C% 5.7% 4.C%
Senior, interest onl 34.(% 32.2% 35.7%
Subordinater 26.2% 29.€% 29.8%
Subordinated, interest on 1.€% 2.C% 1.8%
Senior, no-retainec 9.7% 13.2% 12.1%
Agency RMBS 25.5% 12.2% 12.€%
Securitized loan 2.5% 4.5% 4.C%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 80.€% 55.% 51.7%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 19.4% 44.1% 48.2%
Annualized yield on average interest earning agsethe quarter ende 7.21% 8.85% 8.2%
Annualized cost of funds on average borrowed findghe quarter ended? 2.3% 4.58% 4.1%

*  Excludes cash and cash equivale
** Includes the effect of realized losses on interast swaps

The following table presents details of each aslsess in our portfolio at September 30, 2011. ptiecipal or notional value represents
the interest income earning balance of each cl@ke. weighted average amortized cost, fair valoapon, yield, and CPR at period-end are
weighted by each investment’s respective prinanmidnal value in the asset class. The figuregorisg the annualized yield over the current
quarter is the annualized interest income earndti®asset class during the quarter, includingeffext of principal write-downs, divided by the
average of the beginning and ending amortized afoiste asset class.
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September 30, 201

Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted Weighted
Principal or  Amortized Average Weighted Average Annualized Average 3
Notional Cost Basis  Fair Value Average Yield (Loss Yield Over Month CPR
Value at at Period- at Period- Coupon at  Adjusted) a Current at Period-
Perio-End End End Perio-End Perio-End Quarter End
Non-Agency Mortgage-Backed
Securities
Senior $ 1,282 $ 96.91 $ 91.8¢ 1.00% 2.7(% 19.1%% 22%
Senior, interest onl $ 6,323,25. $ 6.1C $ 5.07 1.84% 10.61% -3.69% 16%
Subordinate $ 4,886,22. $ 5117 $ 41.91 3.9% 12.56% 20.08% 15%
Subordinated, interest on $ 299,57¢ $ 9.9¢ $ 8.8¢€ 2.81% 17.3%% 34.8(% 16%
Senior, no-retained $ 1,794,02. $ 93.2: $ 112.2¢ 5.1(% 4.85% 7.98% 14%
Agency Mortgage-Backed
Securities $ 4,728,15. $ 102.8¢ $ 106.67 4.74% 4.15% 4.1%% 11%
Securitized loan
Senior $ 236,58: $ 101.1¢  $ 101.1¢ 5.4€% 5.1€% 4.98% 20%
Senior, interest onl $ 249,96: $ 0.01 $ 0.01 0.37% 100.0(% 4789.8% 20%
Subordinatec $ 53,04: $ 101.0¢ $ 101.0¢ 5.08% 4.71% 1.63% 20%

(1) See discussion of Financial Condition on pagéo8 a review of GAAP book valu
Results of Operations for the Quarters and Nine Moths Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

For the purpose of computing net interest incontkratios relating to cost of funds measures througthis report, interest expense
includes net interest payments on interest ratpswaesented as Realized gains (losses) on intatesswaps in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss). Isttea¢e swaps are used to hedge the increasesnestipaid on repurchase
agreements. Presenting the contractual intergsb@ats on interest rate swaps with the interest paiinterest-bearing liabilities reflects our
total contractual interest payments. This presemalepicts the economic value of our investmérategy, by showing actual interest expense
and net interest income. Where indicated, intezggense including interest payments on interéstaaaps, is referred to as economic interest
expense. Where indicated, net interest incomeldict) interest payments on interest rate swapefésred to as economic net interest income.

Net Income (Loss) Summary

Our net income for the quarter ended Septembe2@®D1 was $65.9 million or $0.06 per share. Ourimaime was generated primarily
interest income on our portfolio. Our net incormethe quarter ended September 30, 2010 was $1diBi@n, or $0.13 per share. We attribute
the decrease in our net income per share for tagepended September 30, 2011 as compared tondegt&0, 2010 to the increase in
unrealized losses on interest rates swaps andi¢cheaise in net losses on embedded derivatives imt@uest-only RMBS holdings.

Our net income for the nine months ended Septe®e?2011 was $372.0 million, or $0.36 per share. 1@t income was generated
primarily by interest income on our portfolio. Ouet income for the nine months ended Septembe2®) was $349.6 million, or $0.45 per
share. We attribute the decrease in our net inqmenshare for the nine months ended Septembe&03Q, as compared to September 30, 20
the unrealized loss on embedded derivatives imaateonly RMBS and increased OTTI on non-Agency R3MB
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The table below presents the net income (loss) sampior the quarters and nine months ended Septed®h@011 and 2010.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag

(unaudited’
For the Quarter Ende For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, September September 30, September
2011 30, 201C 2011 30, 201C

Net Interest Income:
Interest incom $ 177,64C $ 139,68! $ 600,57¢ $ 401,92¢
Interest expens 7,217 8,03¢ 22,70( 21,901
Interest income, ne¢-retainec 35,03( 55,08¢ 107,56¢ 169,72:
Interest expense, n-retained 25,57¢ 32,23 81,46: 87,48¢
Net interest income (expens 179,87¢ 154,50( 603,98: 462,25
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (249,25 (51,927 (432,979 (135,13¢)
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other compredive income (loss 208,08: 42,117 327,46¢ 84,03:
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (41,176 (9,810 (105,504 (51,104
Other gains (losses)
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (25,317) (13,587) (34,98)) (24,82()
Realized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (4,500 (2,499 (11,649 (3,192

Gains (losses) on interest rate swaj (29,817) (16,076 (46,62%) (28,017)
Net gains (losses) on inter-only RMBS 52 - (4,390 -
Net gains (losses) on embedded derivatives inés-only RMBS (28,175 - (30,409 -
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investment: 28 2,032 1,34 2,374
Total other gains (losse (57,907 (14,044 (80,08:) (25,63¢)
Net investment income (los 80,79¢ 130,64¢ 418,39 385,51!
Other expenses
Management fe 13,25: 11,31¢ 39,15¢ 28,69¢
Provision for loan losse - 482 1,44: 2,11z
General and administrative expen 1,83( 1,79¢ 5,131 4,361
Total other expense 15,08: 13,59¢ 45,73: 35,17«
Income (loss) before income taxe 65,71: 117,04¢ 372,66¢ 350,34:
Income taxe: (171) 752 64t 752
Net income (loss $ 65,88 $ 116,29¢ $ 372,01¢ $ 349,58!
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute: $ 0.06 $ 0.1: $ 0.3¢ $ 0.4t
Weighted average number of shares outstar-basic and dilute: 1,027,195,40 883,147,72 1,027,130,13 773,777,43
Comprehensive income (loss;
Net income (loss $ 65,88 $ 116,29¢ $ 372,01¢ $ 349,58!
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, n (58,429 24,13 (395,72) 100,50«
Reclassification adjustment for net losses incluidetet income (loss) for
othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 41,17¢ 9,81( 105,50« 51,10¢
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggens) included in net
income (loss (28) (2,032 (1,342 (2,379
Other comprehensive income (lo (17,281 31,91( (291,564 149,23«
Comprehensive income (los $ 48,60 $ 148,20¢ $ 80,45 $ 498,82.

See notes to consolidated financial statem:
Net Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

We had average earning assets of $11.8 billions8m8l billion for the quarters ended September 8@,12and 2010, respectively, and
$11.7 billion and $8.2 billion for the nine montlisded September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectivaly.infrest income was $212.7 million and
$194.8 million for the quarters ended SeptembefB@;1 and 2010, respectively, and $708.1 milliod $571.7 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectivebndiaic net interest income increased for the quartd nine months ended September 30,
2011 as compared to the respective periods endadrBeer 30, 2010 due to the increase in averagengaassets over the period. The
annualized yield on our portfolio was 7.21% andb88or the quarters ended September 30, 2011 ah@l 2spectively, and 8.07% and 9.29%
for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 ahd, 28spectively. The decrease in the annualid is attributed to a decline in weighted
average coupon on our portfolio and a decline értét accretion of discoun
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Our economic net interest income, which equalgé@steincome less interest expense and realizeddassinterest rate swaps, totaled
$175.4 million and $152.0 million for the quartersded September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively$392.3 million and $459.1 million for
the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2édkctively. Our net interest spread, which eqiias/ield on our average assets for the
period less the economic average cost of fundthtoperiod, was 4.88% and 4.27% for the quartede@iseptember 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, and 5.58% and 5.30% for the nine moahded September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectiVdyattribute the increase in economic
net interest income to the increase in the amolimterest earning assets following our 2010 seaondfferings. We attribute the increase in
net interest spread to the increase in discoumetion on our non-Agency RMBS.

The table below shows our average assets heldljritéeest earned on assets, yield on averagecssttearning assets (including the
effect of realized losses on principal write-dowras)erage debt balance, economic interest expérdeding the effect of realized losses on
interest rate swaps), average cost of funds, ecanioet interest income, and net interest rate spfeathe quarters ended September 30, 2011,
June 30, 2011, March 31, 2011, December 31, 20kDSaptember 30, 2010 and the year ended Decerhp2030.

Economic Net Interest Incon

Yield on Economi
Average Interest  Average Economit Net Net
Earning Earned Interest Average Interest  Average Interest  Interest
Assets Heli on Asset  Earning Debt Expense Cost of Income Rate
(1) (1) Assets Balance (2) Funds (1D)(2) Spreac

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse

For the quarter ended September 30,

2011 $11,803,04 $212,67( 7.21% $6,390,22: $ 37,29: 2.3%% $175,37¢ 4.88%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $12,078,39 $247,21¢ 8.19% $6,560,921 $ 40,09( 2.44% $ 207,12t 5.75%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2(  $11,235,63 $248,24¢ 8.84% $5,688,31. $ 38,42 2.7(% $ 209,82. 6.14%
For the year ended December 31,2 $ 8,479,10¢ $763,18( 9.00% $3,793,04! $152,23¢ 4.01% $ 610,94 4.9%%
For the quarter ended December 31,

2010 $ 9,311,58! $191,56! 8.22% $3,871,900 $ 39,64¢ 4.10(% $ 151,91¢ 4.1%%
For the quarter ended September 30,

2010 $ 8,801,53. $194,73 8.85% $3,733,89: $ 42,76« 4.58% $151,97! 4.27%

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale
(2) Includes effect of realized losses on interatt swaps

Economic Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had average borrowed funds of $6.4 billion aBd $illion and total economic interest expenseluding the realized losses on
interest rate swaps, of $37.3 million and $42.8iamlfor the quarters ended September 30, 201128140, respectively. We had average
borrowed funds of $6.2 billion and $3.8 hillion atedal economic interest expense of $115.8 milhod $112.6 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectivaly.afhualized cost of funds was 2.33% and 4.58%hquarters ended September 30, :
and 2010, respectively. Our annualized cost of sumds 2.49% and 3.99% for the nine months endeté®éer 30, 2011 and 2010. We
attribute the decrease in the annualized costrafduo the increase of Agency RMBS versus Agency RMBS financed over the period as v
in addition to the general decline in the rate ghdrto finance our assets.

The table below shows our average borrowed furas)amic interest expense, average cost of fundtuive of realized losses on
interest rate swaps), average one-month LIBOR a@eesix-month LIBOR, average one-month LIBOR re&ato average six-month LIBOR,
and average cost of funds relative to average ameé-six- month LIBOR for the quarters September28@,1, June 30, 2011, March 31, 2011,
December 31, 2010, and September 30, 2010 andtreended December 31, 2010.
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Average Cost of Func

Average
One- Average  Average
Month Cost Cost

LIBOR of Funds  of Funds
Relative Relative Relative

to to to
Economit Average Average Average Average  Average
Average Interest  Average One- Six- Six- One- Six-
Borrowed Expense Cost of Month Month Month Month Month
Funds (1) Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse

For the quarter ended September 30,

2011 $6,390,22: $ 37,29: 2.3%% 0.21% 0.47% (0.2€%) 2.12% 1.86%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $6,560,92( $ 40,09( 2.4% 0.2(% 0.42% (0.22%) 2.2/% 2.02%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2(  $5,688,31. $ 38,42¢ 2.7(% 0.26% 0.46% (0.2(%) 2.44% 2.2%
For the year ended December 31,2 $3,793,04! $ 152,23t 4.01% 0.27% 0.52% (0.25%) 3.7/% 3.45%
For the quarter ended December 31,

2010 $3,871,901 $ 39,64¢ 4.1(% 0.2€% 0.45% (0.1€%) 3.84% 3.65%
For the quarter ended September 30,

2010 $3,733,89. $ 42,76« 4.58% 0.2%% 0.5% (0.3(%) 4.2%% 3.9%%

(1) Includes effect of realized losses on interatt swaps
Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets

During the quarter ended September 30, 2011, wkRMBIBS with a carrying value of $2.3 million foralezed gains of $28
thousand. During the quarter ended September@@M @&e sold RMBS with a carrying value of $206.0liom for realized gains of $2.0
million. During the nine months ended September2Bd1 and 2010, we sold RMBS with a carrying valti$667.4 million and $295.1 million
for realized gains of $1.3 million and $2.4 millioespectively.

Secured Debt Financing Transactions
We did not re-securitize RMBS during the quartest ame months ended September 30, 2011.

We did not sell any bonds created in our re-sdeatibn transactions that were executed in prigigos during the quarter ended
September 30, 2011. During the nine months endptegiber 30, 2011, we financed through these tctinga $306.6 million of AAA-rated
fixed rate bonds by selling the bonds to third ypavestors for net proceeds of $311.0 million.

During the nine months ended September 30, 201@ameferred $3.5 billion in principal value of daMBS to the CSMC 2010-1R,
CSMC 2010-11R, and CSMC 2010-12R Trusts in re-$ézation transactions. These transactions wegerded as “secured borrowings”
pursuant to ASC Topics 860 and 810. During the mmonths ended September 30, 2010, we financedghrhese transactions $1.1 billion of
AAA-rated fixed rate bonds by selling the bondshtiod party investors for net proceeds of $1. lidmil

Management Fee and General and Administrative Exges

We paid FIDAC a management fee of $13.3 million &&d.3 million for the quarters ended Septembef8Q,1 and 2010, respective
and $39.2 million and $28.7 million for the nine mtlas ended September 2011 and 2010, respectiVély.management fee is based on our
stockholdersequity and the increase in the management fedéoguarter and nine months ended September 30,&0ddmpared to the qual
and nine months ended September 30, 2010 resutedthe increased equity due to the completioreocbadary offerings of common stock
during 2010.

General and administrative (or G&A) expenses, idiclg the provision for loan losses, were $1.8 willand $2.3 million for the

quarters ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, resggcand $6.6 million and $6.5 million for theng months ended September 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively. G&A expenses decreased doe talditional loan loss provision being recorded.
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Total expenses as a percentage of average totdabagsre 0.61% and 0.77% for the quarters endetd@bpr 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, and 0.69% and 0.79% for the nine moahded September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectiVeky decrease in total expenses as a
percentage of average total assets is the resatt ofcrease in the asset base over the period.

During the quarters ended September 30, 2011 ah@l ®@ reimbursed FIDAC approximately $166 thousamd $177 thousand,
respectively for our pro rata portion of rent, fene, utilities, office furniture, equipment, masdry and other office, internal and overhead
expenses of FIDAC and its affiliates required far operations. During the nine months ended Sepe®®, 2011 and 2010 we reimbursed
FIDAC approximately $482 thousand and $324 thousaspectively for our pro rata portion of rentefghone, utilities, office furniture,
equipment, machinery and other office, internal anerhead expenses of FIDAC and its affiliates meglfor our operations.

The table below shows our total management feeG# expenses as compared to average total assgtmvanage equity for the
quarters ended September 30, 2011, June 30, 20drthN81, 2011, December 31, 2010, and Septemb@030,and the year ended December
31, 2010.

Management Fees, Loan Loss Provision and G&A Exgmeaad Operating Expense Ra

Total Total
Total Management Management
Management Fee, Loan Los Fee, Loan Loss
Fee, Loan Los Provision and Provision and
Provision and G&A G&A
G&A Expenses/Tot: Expenses/Avera(
Expense! Assets Equity
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the quarter ended September 30, 2 $ 15,08 0.61% 1.7&%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $ 14,97 0.5% 1.72%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( $ 15,67¢ 0.6&% 1.7%%
For the year ended December 31, 2 $ 49,62¢ 0.7&% 1.71%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 $ 14,45¢ 0.7€% 1.76%
For the quarter ended September 30, Z $ 13,59¢ 0.77% 1.87%

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equity

Our net income was $65.9 million and $116.3 millfonthe quarters ended September 30, 2011 and, 284j@ectively, and $372.0
million and $349.6 million for the nine months eddgeptember 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. tdtie below shows our economic net
interest income, gains (losses) on sale of assetsalized gains (losses) on interest rate swafs, éxpenses, income tax, each as a percentage
of average equity, and the return on average efmitthe quarters ended September 30, 2011, Jun203Q, March 31, 2011, December 31,
2010, and September 30, 2010 and the year endeshibec 31, 2010. Our return on average equity dsexdtfrom 16.00% for the quarter en
September 30, 2010 to 7.76% for the quarter enépteBber 30, 2011 and decreased from 18.54% faritleemonths ended September 30,
2010 to 14.10% for the nine months ended SepteBMe2011 due to the increase in OTTI losses, irE@&&A expenses and a decrease in the
yield on our assets.
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Components of Return on Average Eqt

Realized and

Realized unrealized
Gains Gains (Losses
(Losses) on on Interest Return
Net Interest Sales and Rate Total Income on
Income/Averag OTTI/Average Swaps/Averac Expenses/Avera¢ Tax/Averag: Average
Equity * Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity

(Ratios have been annualize

For the quarter ended September 3C

2011 21.1% (4.85%) (6.82%) (1.78%) 0.02% 7.7€%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 24.2% (3.55%) (3.4<%) (1.72%) (0.01%) 15.42%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( 23.55% (3.5(%) 0.71% (1.74%) (0.08%) 19.0(%
For the year ended December 31, 2 21.25% (2.23%) (0.54%) (1.71%) (0.03%) 16.7%
For the quarter ended December 31,

2010 18.78% (1.93%) 1.48% (1.7€%) 0.0(% 16.51%
For the quarter ended September 3C

2010 21.25% (1.07%) (2.21%) (1.87%) (0.1(%) 16.0(%

* Includes the effect of realized losses on interate
swaps

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requieats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, fund and maintain
RMBS, mortgage loans and other assets, pay dividland other general business needs. Our prinedpaites of capital and funds for additio
investments primarily include earnings from ouréstments, borrowings under securitizations anatoen#tizations, repurchase agreements and
other financing facilities, and proceeds from egoitferings.

To meet our short term (one year or less) liquidigds, we expect to continue to borrow funds énfelhm of repurchase agreements
and, subject to market conditions, other typesnaricing. The terms of the repurchase transatiisrowings under our master repurchase
agreements generally conform to the terms in thedstrd master repurchase agreement as publishtbeé Becurities Industry and Financial
Markets Association, or SIFMA, as to repayment,gimarequirements and the segregation of all saeante have initially sold under the
repurchase transaction. In addition, each lengecdlly requires that we include supplemental teand conditions to the standard master
repurchase agreement. Typical supplemental tenth€@anditions include changes to the margin maariea requirements, required haircuts,
and purchase price maintenance requirements, sggeirts that all controversies related to the rdmse agreement be litigated in a particular
jurisdiction and cross default provisions. Thesavisions will differ for each of our lenders andlwot be determined until we engage i
specific repurchase transaction.

We also expect to meet our short term liquiditydseby relying on the cash flows generated by ouestments. These cash flows are
primarily comprised of monthly principal and intst@ayments received on our investments. We nsysall our investments and utilize those
proceeds to meet our short term liquidity needsnder into non-recourse financing of our assetsutin sales of securities to third parties of re-
securitization transactions that we have complatguior periods.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe osetaswill be sufficient to enable us
to meet anticipated short-term liquidity requiretsenHowever, a decline in the value of our collateould cause a temporary liquidity shortfall
due to the timing of the necessary margin calltherfinancing arrangements and the actual recéigteocash related to principal paydowns. If
our cash resources are at any time insufficiesatsfy our liquidity requirements, we may havesédl investments, potentially at a loss, or issue
debt or additional equity securities in a commartktoffering.

To meet our longer term liquidity needs (greatantbne year), we expect our principal sources pitaisand funds to continue to be
provided by earnings from our investments, borr@siaonder securitizations and re-securitizatiorgrehase agreements and other financing
facilities, and proceeds from equity offerings. alidition, we may reenter into warehouse faciljtiesse commercial paper, term financing CDOs,
and longer dated structured repurchase agreemeéhesuse of these sources of capital and fundsdepiend on market conditions, availability
these facilities, and the investment opportuniiesilable to us.
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Current Period
We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&&§ million and $11.9 million at September 30, 2@hd 2010, respectively.

Our operating activities provided net cash of agpnately $338.1 million and $234.3 million for théne months ended September 30,
2011 and 2010, respectively. The cash providedg®yating activities increased due to the incréaset interest income earned by the portfi
which resulted from the increase in interest eayrissets to $9.6 billion in investments at Septer@BBe2011 as compared to $7.2 billion at
September 30, 2010.

Our investing activities used net cash of $2.0dsilland net cash $903.0 million for the nine morghded September 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively. During the nine months endegt&nber 30, 2011 we utilized cash to purchaseldiBigh in securities which were offset |
proceeds from asset sales of $670.9 million amtpral repayments of $1.0 billion. During the nmenths ended September 30, 2010 we
utilized cash to purchase $2.3 billion in secusitiehich were offset by proceeds from asset salspitovided $298.3 million and principal
repayments of $1.1 billion. The increase in casddufor investing activities is the result of irgsing leverage on the Agency RMBS portfolio.

Our financing activities provided net cash of $iiilion and net cash $656.4 million for the ninemitts ended September 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively. The nine months ended SepteBihe2011 reflected net proceeds on repurchaseagmts of $2.4 billion as compared to
net payments on repurchase agreements of $407i@mfdr the nine months ended September 30, 20d@&ddition, the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 reflected net payments on sieedridebt borrowings of $209.7 million as compai@@roceeds from securitized debt
borrowings of $724.4 million for the nine monthsled September 30, 2010. There were no seconttanly afferings in the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 and secondary stock offerirmaged net proceeds of $767.6 million for the ninenths ended September 30, 2010. The
increase in cash provided by financing activitegrimarily due to proceeds from repurchase agratsre finance asset purchases. Recourse
leverage increased to 1.2:1 at September 30, 2)ttrapared to 0.5:1 at September 30, 2010 refkecfithe increase in financed Agency
RMBS.

We expect to continue to finance our activitiesimanner that is consistent with our current opanatlargely via repurchase
agreements. During the nine months ended SepteB@h@011, we received $1.0 billion from principapayments and used leverage on our
Agency RMBS which provided approximately $2.4 botliin cash. In addition, we may from time to tis@#l securities as a source of cash to
fund new purchases.

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, thaining maturities of repurchase agreements for BNtBpresented below.

September 30, December 31,

2011 2010
Overnight $ -3 =
1-29 days 1,440,36 232,26!
30 to 59 day: 1,211,18: 970,39
60 to 89 day: 203,36: 545,44;
90 to 119 day 430,44 60,69¢
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 885,83 -
Total $ 4,171,190 $ 1,808,79

We collateralize the repurchase agreements weousgance our operations with RMBS. Our countetipamegotiate a ‘haircut’ when
we enter into a financing transaction, which vagnf lender to lender. A haircut is a percentage ihsubtracted from the par value of RMBS
that collateralizes the financing. The size oftl@cut reflects the perceived risk associated Witlling the RMBS by the lender. The haircut
provides lenders with a cushion for daily markdtigamovements that reduce the need for a margiiacche issued or margin to be returned as
normal daily increases or decreases in RMBS valaesr. Despite the haircut, repurchase agreensebjsct us to two types of margin calls.
First, there are monthly margin calls that aregeiged as principal payments and pre-payments eedvesl by us as these payments lower the
value of the collateral. As a result, we expeaeeive margin calls from our repurchase countégsamonthly simply due to the release of
updated factors from the trustees of the trustslwlisued the RMBS we own. The monthly principalrpents and pre-payments are not known
in advance and vary depending on the behavioreobtrrowers of the mortgages underlying the tri&tsond, counterparties make margin calls
or return margin as a result of normal daily inse=aor decreases in asset values. Each countempaytgalculate or manage these margin calls
differently. In addition, when financing assetsngsstandard form of Securities Industry and Finalndiarkets Association Master Repurchase
Agreements, the counterparty to the agreementdifpinets its exposure to us on all outstandingirelpase agreements and issues margin c
movement of the asset values in aggregate exckenlsatiowable exposure to us. A decline in asaéites could create a margin call, or may
create no margin call depending on the counterjsaspecific policy. In addition counterparties sater a number of factors, including their
aggregate exposure to us as a whole and the nwhbeays remaining before the repurchase transactases prior to issuing a margin call.
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The table below presents our average repurchaaadsmturing the period and repurchase balancechtpsiod end. Our balance at
period end tends to have little fluctuation frore tiverage balances except in periods where waeneasing the size of our portfolio using
leverage. For example, subsequent to our complefia secondary offering of common stock during fisurth quarter of 2010 our quarter end
repurchase balance increased compared to our &/mpgrchase balance.

Repurchase Balan

Average Repurcha at
Period Balance Quarter Enc
(dollars in thousands
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 4,301,25. $ 4,171,19
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 4,308,78 4,320,48
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 3,385,15! 3,870,40°
Year Ended December 31, 20 1,525,28! 1,808,79
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( 1,575,91 1,808,79
Quarter Ended September 30, 2( 1,272,01 1,568,22.

We are not required to maintain any specific debequity ratio as we believe the appropriate leger@ar the particular assets we are
financing depends on the credit quality and riskhoke assets. At September 30, 2011 and Dece3thp2010 our total debt was approximately
$6.2 billion and $4.1 billion, which representedabt-to-equity ratio of approximately 1.8:1 and:1,espectively. We include repurchase
agreements, securitized debt, and securitized dehtyetained in the numerator of our debt-to-ggratio and stockholders’ equity as the
denominator.

Stockholders’ Equity

On January 28, 2011, we entered into an equityiligion agreement with FIDAC and UBS Securitiesd,lor UBS. Through this
agreement, we may sell through UBS, as our salestagp to 125,000,000 shares of our common stockdinary brokers’ transactions at
market prices or other transactions as agreed ketwe and UBS. We did not sell any shares of ommgon stock under the equity distribution
agreement during the quarter ended September 3@, 20

On September 24, 2009, we implemented a divideindestment and share purchase plan, or DRSPP DR&PP provides holders of
record of our common stock an opportunity to autiicaly reinvest all or a portion of their cashtdisutions received on common stock in
additional shares of our common stock as well andke optional cash payments to purchase shams @bommon stock. Persons who are not
already stockholders may also purchase our comtoak sinder the plan through optional cash paymente DRSPP is administered by the
Administrator, The Bank of New York Mellon. Duririlge nine months ended September 30, 2011 we r@iE@ithousand by issuing 214,000
shares through the DRSPP. During the nine monttiedeBeptember 30, 2010, we raised $263 thousaissbing 68,000 shares through the
DRSPP.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2011 wedgtHividends to common shareholders totaling $188llion, or $0.13 per
share. During the quarter ended September 30, 24 @eclared dividends to common shareholderirigt&158.8 million, or $0.18 per share.
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During the nine months ended September 30, 201deckared dividends to common shareholders tot&litig.5 million, or $0.40 per
share. During the nine months ended Septembe3M, we declared dividends to common sharehotdéabng $403.0 million, or $0.52 per
share.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstaraBrmgf September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010.
Related Party Transactions
Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managengea¢ment with FIDAC, pursuant to which FIDAC isidat to receive a
management fee and, in certain circumstancespartation fee and reimbursement of certain expeasetescribed in the management
agreement. Such fees and expenses do not hadesfixedeterminable payments. The management feg/able quarterly in arrears in an
amount equal to 1.50% per annum, calculated gusrtdrour stockholders’ equity (as defined in thanagement agreement). FIDAC uses the
proceeds from its management fee in part to paypemsation to its officers and employees who, ntisténding that certain of them also are
officers, receive no cash compensation directlynfres.

Clearing Fees

On March 1, 2011, we entered into an administragdmices agreement with RCap Securities, IndR@ap. We use RCap, a SEC
registered broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsyddf Annaly, to clear trades for us and RCapaisl gustomary market-based fees and
charges in return for such services. RCap maymisade brokerage services to us from time to time.

Financing Arrangements with Affiliates

In April 2009, we entered into a Securities Indystnd Financial Markets Association standard pregped form Master Repurchase
Agreement with RCap Securities, Inc., a wholly odisebsidiary of Annaly. This standard agreemeesdmt contain any sort of liquidity, net
worth or other similar types of positive or negattovenants. Rather, the agreement contains cotgetieat require the buyer and seller of
securities to deliver collateral or securities, aidilar covenants which are customary in masteurehase agreements. At September 30, 2011
and December 31, 2010 we had no financing undsratiieement. We have been in compliance withoakrants of this agreement since we
entered into this agreement.

In March 2008, we entered into a Securities Inguatrd Financial Markets Association standard praed form Master Repurchase
Agreement with Annaly. This standard agreemensdu contain any sort of liquidity, net worth gher similar types of positive or negative
covenants. Rather, the agreement contains cowetiattrequire the buyer and seller of securitedeliver collateral or securities, and similar
covenants which are customary in master repurchgieEments. At September 30, 2011 and Decemb@030,we had no financing under this
agreement. We have been in compliance with alknants of this agreement since we entered intatrsement.

Restricted Stock Grants

We granted 1,301,000 shares of restricted stockitdvianager’s employees and members of our boaditettors during the year
ended December 31, 2008. During the quarters eBdptember 30, 2011 and 2010, 32,000 and 48,008ssharestricted stock we had awar
to our Manager’s employees vested and 226 and @ 8/0éres were forfeited or cancelled, respectiviéle did not grant any incentive awards
during the nine months ended September 30, 201 Beptember 30, 2011 and 2010 there were approaiyna®0,000 and 917,000 unvested
shares of restricted stock issued to employee$AE, respectively. For the quarter ended Septerbe2011 and 2010, compensation
expense less general and administrative costsiatstaevith the amortization of the fair value oétrestricted stock totaled $112 thousand and
$114 thousand, respectively. For the nine montide@ September 30, 2011 and 2010, compensatiomsxpess general and administrative
costs associated with the amortization of thevalue of the restricted stock totaled $368 thousamti$365 thousand, respectively.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following tables summarize our contractual gdions at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010

September 30, 201

Greater Than
Within One Oneto Three Threeto Five  or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousands

Repurchase agreements for RM $ 4,171,190 $ - $ - $ - $ 4,171,190

Securitized dek 526,45! 682,98 287,91: 429,54 1,926,89!

Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 2,792 - - - 2,792

Interest expense on securitized debi 85,05 113,88: 72,37 247,64¢ 518,95¢

Total $ 4,78548 $ 796,86° $ 360,28¢ $ 677,19 $ 6,619,83

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effsaifeSeptember 30, 201

December 31, 201

Greater Thar
Within One One to Three  Three to Five or Equal to
Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousands
Repurchase agreements for RM $ 1,808,79 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,808,79
Securitized dek 634,98 831,30! 305,95! 417,97 2,190,22:
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 1,22: - - - 1,22:
Interest expense on securitized debt 86,45! 113,63! 68,33t 171,04. 439,46!
Total $ 2,531,46. $ 944,94 $ 374,28t $ 589,01¢ $ 4,439,70:

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effeafeDecember 31, 201
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidi@etities or financial partnerships, such as iestivften referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which wouldehlbeen established for the purpose of facilitatifidoalance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furtlvee, have not guaranteed any obligations of uncaesteld entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any sectities.
Capital Resources

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, webadaterial commitments or capital expenditures.
Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetadsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxafd®me, determined without
regard to the deduction for dividends paid andwdiclg any net capital gains. We intend to pay ragquarterly dividends to our stockholders.
Before we pay any dividend, whether for U.S. fetlemr@ome tax purposes or otherwise, which wouldydod paid out of available cash to the

extent permitted under our financing facilities, meast first meet any operating requirements aneédwled debt service on our financing
facilities and other debt payable.
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Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities are@n¢st rate sensitive in nature. As a result, istenaes and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chamgénterest rates do not necessarily correlate inflation rates or changes in inflation rates.
Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with GAAP and our distributions Wil determined by our board of directors
consistent with our obligation to distribute to @tiockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable ine@n an annual basis in order to maintain
our REIT qualification; in each case, our activatend balance sheet are measured with refereristéoical cost and/or fair market value
without considering inflation.

Other Matters

We calculate that at least 75% of our assets weaéfed REIT assets, as defined in the Code fergharter ended September 30, 2011
and the year ended December 31, 2010. We alsolatddhat our revenue qualifies for the 75% sowfdecome test and for the 95% source of
income test rules for the quarters ended SepteBhe2011 and December 31, 2010. Consequently, @t¢ha REIT income and asset test. We
also met all REIT requirements regarding the owmpref our common stock and the distribution of aat income. Therefore, as of the quarter
ended of September 30, 2011 and the year endedibeces1, 2010, we believe that we qualified as &lREder the Code.

We at all times intend to conduct our businessssacd to become regulated as an investment comyzagr the Investment Company
Act of 1940, or the Investment Company Act. If were to become regulated as an investment complagy our use of leverage would be
substantially reduced.

Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Adirds an investment company as any issuer thatgaged or proposes to engag:
the business of investing, reinvesting, owninggdima or trading in securities and owns or propdeegcquire investment securities having a
value exceeding 40% of the value of the issueta tssets (exclusive of U.S. Government securtigscash items) on an unconsolidated basis
(the “40% test”). Excluded from the term “investrhercurities,” among other things, are securisssed by majority-owned subsidiaries that
rely on the exemption from registration providedSsction 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act.

Certain of our subsidiaries, including Chimera Ads$elding LLC and certain subsidiaries that we nfiayn in the future, rely on the
exemption from registration provided by Section)&}C) of the Investment Company Act. Section@E)XC) as interpreted by the staff of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (or the SEQimes us to invest at least 55% of our assetmiortgages and other liens on and interest in
real estate” (or Qualifying Real Estate Assets) ainéast 80% of our assets in Qualifying Real tesé&sets plus real estate related assets. The
assets that we acquire, therefore, are limitechbyptovisions of the Investment Company Act andrtihes and regulations promulgated under
the Investment Company Act.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept etidbexd “Companies Engaged in the Business of Aauy Mortgages and
Mortgage-Related Instruments” (SEC Release No.9C78). Under the concept release, the SEC iswawiginterpretive issues related to the
Section 3(c)(5)(C) exemption.

We calculate that as of September 30, 2011 andrbleee31, 2010, we were in compliance with the ex@ngrom registration
provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investmentrany Act as interpreted by the staff of the SEC.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The primary components of our market risk are egldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk,market value risk and real estate
risk. While we do not seek to avoid risk completele believe the risk can be quantified from histrexperience and we seek to actively
manage that risk, to earn sufficient compensatigudtify taking those risks and to maintain cadiaels consistent with the risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments and face more credit risk on assetewn which are rated below
“AAA”. The credit risk related to these investments pestto the ability and willingness of the borrowerpay, which is assessed before ci
is granted or renewed and periodically reviewedughout the loan or security term. We believe thaidual loan credit quality is primarily
determined by the borrowers’ credit profiles angn@haracteristics. FIDAC uses a comprehensivatamdew process. FIDAC'’s analysis of
loans includes borrower profiles, as well as vatueand appraisal data. FIDAC uses compensatirtgf&asuch as liquid assets, low loan to v
ratios and job stability in evaluating loans. FIOA resources include a proprietary portfolio maragnt system, as well as third party software
systems. FIDAC utilizes a third party due diligefficen to perform an independent underwriting revimansure compliance with existing
guidelines. FIDAC selects loans for review predédadn risk-based criteria such as loan-to-valugroleer’s credit score(s) and loan size.
FIDAC also outsources underwriting services toeevhigher risk loans, either due to borrower crediffiles or collateral valuation issues. In
addition to statistical sampling techniques, FID&®@ates adverse credit and valuation samples, whécimdividually review. FIDAC rejects
loans that fail to conform to our standards. FIDa¢cepts only those loans which meet our underwritiiteria. Once we own a loan, FIDAC's
surveillance process includes ongoing analysisutiinamur proprietary data warehouse and servies.fAdditionally, the non-Agency RMBS
and other ABS which we acquire for our portfolie aeviewed by FIDAC to ensure that they satisfy ik based criteria. FIDAC's review of
non-Agency RMBS and other ABS includes utilizing firoprietary portfolio management system. FIDA@\@ew of non-Agency RMBS and
other ABS is based on quantitative and qualitativalysis of the risk-adjusted returns on non-AgeRMBS and other ABS present.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many éast including governmental, monetary and tax pedicdomestic and international
economic and political considerations and othetofacbeyond our control. We are subject to interatst risk in connection with our investments
and our related debt obligations, which are geherapurchase agreements, warehouse facilitiesyrgization, commercial paper and term
financing CDOs. Our repurchase agreements and wasethfacilities may be of limited duration that pegiodically refinanced at current mar
rates. We intend to mitigate this risk throughizgition of derivative contracts, primarily intereate swap agreements.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Income

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofeifices between the income from our investmerdanborrowing costs. Most of
our warehouse facilities and repurchase agreenpeovsde financing based on a floating rate of ies¢rcalculated on a fixed spread over LIB
The fixed spread varies depending on the type détying asset which collateralizes the financidgcordingly, the portion of our portfolio
which consists of floating interest rate assets$ lvéilmatch-funded utilizing our expected sourceshafrt-term financing, while our fixed interest
rate assets will not be match-funded. During periofrising interest rates, the borrowing cost®eiséed with our investments tend to increase
while the income earned on our fixed interest rmtestments may remain substantially unchanged Wil result in a narrowing of the net
interest spread between the related assets analAings and may even result in losses. Furthernduhis portion of the interest rate and credit
cycles, defaults could increase and result in ttedses to us, which could adversely affect aquitlity and operating results. Such delinquer
or defaults could also have an adverse effect espinead between interest-earning assets andstiteraring liabilities. Hedging techniques are
partly based on assumed levels of prepaymentsrdbad-rate and hybrid adjustable-rate mortgagsmtoand RMBS. If prepayments are slower
or faster than assumed, the life of the mortgagadand RMBS will be longer or shorter, which wordduce the effectiveness of any hedging
strategies we may use and may cause losses oftranshctions. Hedging strategies involving theafsgerivative securities are highly complex
and may produce volatile returns.
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Interest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate risk is the @ffdanges in interest rates will have on thevfaiue of the assets we acquire. We face
the risk that the fair value of our assets willrgse or decrease at different rates than thairdfabilities, including our hedging instruments.
We primarily assess our interest rate risk by eaimg the duration of our assets and the duratfamupliabilities. Duration essentially measures
the market price volatility of financial instrumerds interest rates change. We generally calcdlatdion using various financial models and
empirical data. Different models and methodolog&s produce different duration numbers for the saeairities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signiflgamhen interest rates change beyond
100 basis points from current levels. Therefore mblatility in the fair value of our assets coudrease significantly when interest rates change
beyond 100 basis points. In addition, other facitoysact the fair value of our interest rate-sewmsitnvestments and hedging instruments, such a:
the shape of the yield curve, market expectatian® éuture interest rate changes and other madkeditions. Accordingly, in the event of
changes in actual interest rates, the change ifathealue of our assets would likely differ fraitmat shown below and such difference might be
material and adverse to our stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRIMIBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thiedging mortgages are
typically subject to periodic and lifetime intereate caps and floors, which limit the amount byichithe security’s interest yield may change
during any given period. However, our borrowingtsgaursuant to our financing agreements will nosbigject to similar restrictions. Therefore,
in a period of increasing interest rates, interat costs on our borrowings could increase witlimitation by caps, while the interesdte yield:
on our adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBS dvefiéctively be limited. This problem will be mafied to the extent we acquire
adjustable-rate RMBS that are not based on mortgafych are fully indexed. In addition, the mortgagr the underlying mortgages in an
RMBS may be subject to periodic payment caps #milt in some portion of the interest being deféard added to the principal outstanding.
This could result in our receipt of less cash ineam our adjustable-rate mortgages or RMBS thaneeel in order to pay the interest cost on
our related borrowings. These factors could lowerreet interest income or cause a net loss dumipgs of rising interest rates, which would
harm our financial condition, cash flows and resokt operations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitiohfybrid adjustable-rate mortgages and RMBS withrdwings that, after the effect of
hedging, have interest rates based on indiceseapdaing terms similar to, but of somewhat shontaturities than, the interest rate indices and
re-pricing terms of the mortgages and RMBS. Thusnost cases the interest rate indices and reagrieirms of our mortgage assets and our
funding sources will not be identical, thereby tirgan interest rate mismatch between assetsianitities. Therefore, our cost of funds would
likely rise or fall more quickly than would our @amgs rate on assets. During periods of changitegést rates, such interest rate mismatches
could negatively impact our financial conditionsh&lows and results of operations. To mitigateriest rate mismatches, we may utilize the
hedging strategies discussed above. Our analysisksfis based on FIDAG’experience, estimates, models and assumptiorseTdnalyses re
on models which utilize estimates of fair value amérest rate sensitivity. Actual economic corais or implementation of investment decisi
by our management may produce results that diffgrifecantly from the estimates and assumptionsluseour models and the projected results
shown in this Form 10-Q.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolim@luding interest rate swaps) may be adverselyggteduring any period as a result of
changing interest rates. The following table gifiestthe potential changes in net interest incame portfolio value should interest rates go up
or down 25, 50, and 75 basis points, assumingitid gurves of the rate shocks will be paralletswh other and the current yield curve. All
changes in income and value are measured as pageectianges from the projected net interest inameportfolio value at the base interest
rate scenario. The base interest rate scenanon@ssinterest rates at September 30, 2011 andugagiiimates regarding prepayment and all
activities are made at each level of rate shoc&tud results could differ significantly from thesstimates.
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September 30, 201

Projected
Percentage Chan
in Net Interest

Projected
Percentage Chany

Change in Interest Ra Income in Portfolio Value

-75 Basis Point (10.75%) 4.88%
-50 Basis Point (8.3€%) 3.2%
-25 Basis Point (5.9%%) 1.6(%
Base Interest Ra - -

+25 Basis Point 1.02% (1.58%)
+50 Basis Point 1.3% (3.14%)
+75 Basis Point 1.65% (4.68%)

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesestments, premiums and discounts on such invessmeaihtbe amortized or accret:
against interest income. In general, an increapeapayment rates will accelerate the amortizatiopurchase premiums, thereby reducing the
interest income earned on the investments. Conlyediscounts on such investments are accretedrit¢oest income. In general, an increase in
prepayment rates will accelerate the accretioruofipase discounts, thereby increasing the intérestne earned on the investments. Decreases
in prepayment rates will generally have the eftdaeducing the amortization of premiums and distsuthereby resulting in an increase and
reduction of interest income, respectively.

Extension Risk

FIDAC computes the projected weighted-averageolifeur investments based on assumptions regartisgate at which the
borrowers will prepay the underlying mortgagesgémeral, when fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-ratetgage loans or RMBS are acquired with
borrowings, we may, but are not required to, eintigr an interest rate swap agreement or other hgdgstrument that effectively fixes our
borrowing costs for a period close to the anti@dadverage life of the fixed-rate portion of thiated assets. This strategy is designed to protect
us from rising interest rates because the borrowowgs are fixed for the duration of the fixed-ratetion of the related assets. However, if
prepayment rates decrease in a rising intereserateonment, the life of the fixed-rate portiontbé related assets could extend beyond the tern
of the swap agreement or other hedging instrunTéms. could have a negative impact on our resutmfoperations, as borrowing costs would
no longer be fixed after the end of the hedgingrimsent while the income earned on the hybrid ddhls-rate assets would remain fixed. This
situation may also cause the market value of obrilyadjustable-rate assets to decline, with Ibtleno offsetting gain from the related hedging
transactions. In extreme situations, we may beefbto sell assets to maintain adequate liquidityicivcould cause us to incur losses.

Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind fsses excluded from earnings and
reported in other comprehensive income. The estichtir value of these securities fluctuates prilmaue to changes in interest rates,
prepayment speeds, market liquidity, credit quabtyd other factors. Generally, in a rising ins¢rate environment, the estimated fair value of
these securities would be expected to decreaseersmly, in a decreasing interest rate environntbatestimated fair value of these securities
would be expected to increase. As market volgtifitreases or liquidity decreases, the fair valieur investments may be adversely impacted.

Real Estate Market Risk

We own assets secured by real property and mayrealproperty directly in the future. Residenpabperty values are subject to
volatility and may be affected adversely by a numdfdactors, including, but not limited to, natalnregional and local economic conditions
(which may be adversely affected by industry slowds and other factors); local real estate conditi@uch as an oversupply of housing);
changes or continued weakness in specific indssigynents; construction quality, age and designpdeaphic factors; and retroactive changes
to building or similar codes. In addition, decreageproperty values reduce the value of the caidtand the potential proceeds available to a
borrower to repay our loans, which could also caiss® suffer losses.
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Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REtatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential
mortgage loans, RMBS, and other assets and raflaiettagainst the effects of major interest ratengha. We generally seek to manage our risk
by:

e monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the resg¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

e attempting to structure our financing agreemémtsave a range of different maturities, terms, dinations and interest rate adjustment
periods;

e using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, @psi caps, floors and forward sales to adjustriterest rate sensitivity of our investments
and our borrowings

e using securitization financing to lower averagstof funds relative to short-term financing védscfurther allowing us to receive the
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pedbtime in contrast to short term financing and uniy dates of the investments included
in the securitization; an

e actively managing, on an aggregate basis, tleedst rate indices, interest rate adjustment pgriaad gross reset margins of our
investments and the interest rate indices and eugrg periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets atilitias are concerned with the timing and magnétad the re-pricing of assets and liabilities. We
attempt to control risks associated with interagt movements. Methods for evaluating interestriak include an analysis of our interest rate
sensitivity “gap”, which is the difference betweeterest-earning assets and interest-bearinditiabimaturing or repricing within a given tim
period. A gap is considered positive when the arhofiinterest-rate sensitive assets exceeds tloeiainof interest-rate sensitive liabilities. A
gap is considered negative when the amount ofdstenate sensitive liabilities exceeds interest-smnsitive assets. During a period of rising
interest rates, a negative gap would tend to adixeedfect net interest income, while a positive geould tend to result in an increase in net
interest income. During a period of falling interreates, a negative gap would tend to result imarease in net interest income, while a positive
gap would tend to affect net interest income adtgrsBecause different types of assets and ligdsliwith the same or similar maturities may
react differently to changes in overall market saie conditions, changes in interest rates maytiffet interest income positively or negatively
even if an institution were perfectly matched isleaaturity category.

The following table sets forth the estimated mayuor re-pricing of our interest-earning assets iauterest-bearing liabilities at
September 30, 2011. The amounts of assets arlitigstshown within a particular period were detémed in accordance with the contractual
terms of the assets and liabilities, except adplsteate loans, and securities are included irpdréod in which their interest rates are first
scheduled to adjust and not in the period in wiligty mature and does include the effect of the@sterate swaps. The interest rate sensitivi
our assets and liabilities in the table could \&urstantially if based on actual prepayment expeée
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Within 3 1Yearto3 Greater than

Months 3-12 Months Years Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 793,93¢ $ 2,79426. $ 1,71558 $ 13,268,31 $ 18,572,10
Cash equivalent 9,824 - - - 9,824
Total rate sensitive asse¢ 803,76 2,794,26. 1,715,58i 13,268,31 18,581,92.
Rate sensitive liabilitie 1,960,92i 1,782,51 189,97 1,323,84; 5,257,26I
Interest rate sensitivity gé $ (1,157,16) $ 1,011,74 $ 152561 $ 11,944,446 $ 13,324,66
Cumulative rate sensitivity gé $ (1,157,16) $ (145,419 $ 1,380,190 $ 13,324,66
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap ¢
percentage of total rate sensitive as -6% -1% 7% 72%

Our analysis of risks is based on our manager’'sapce, estimates, models and assumptions. HEmedgses rely on models which
utilize estimates of fair value and interest raesitivity. Actual economic conditions or implent&iion of investment decisions by our manager
may produce results that differ significantly frahe estimates and assumptions used in our modeélthamprojected results shown in the above
tables and in this Form 10-Q. These analyses moagatain forward-looking statements and are suthijethe safe harbor statement set forth
under the heading, “Special Note Regarding Forwaroking Statements.”

54




ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Changes in Internal Controls

(@) During the third quarter of 2011, we detiexed that the application of ASC 325-4fyestments — Other, Beneficial Interests in
Securitized Financial Assetshould be applied rather than ASC 3201h0estments — Debt and Equity Securitiesevaluating non-
Agency RMBS that are not of high credit quality &dher-than-temporary impairment and related irsteirecome recognition. We
consider a non-Agency RMBS to be not of high crgdality when it does not have an actual or imptitthg of AA or higher at the
time of acquisition. We evaluated the effect & thhange in application of the accounting princgpistandard on our consolidated
financial statements. We do not believe the adjasts resulting from this change in applicationraegerial to our consolidated
financial statements for any reported per

(b) In connection with the adjustments, wetfartevaluated our internal control over financégdarting. We determined that as of
September 30, 2011 the above referenced erromiicagion of accounting standards demonstrated @na&weakness in our internal
control over financial reporting and our existingalosure controls and procedures were not effedtipreventing or detecting this
error.

(c) In order to remediate the material weakiesair internal control over financial reportinggWwave engaged an independent registered
public accounting firm and accounting research atiimg firm with affiliates worldwide (the “SAS 5Advisor”) to assist us with our
application of accounting standards to all aspettaur financial reporting. We have implemented filtlowing changes to internal
controls:

e We have arranged to utilize the SAS 50 Advisor gdorward for our accounting standards researcipaty

e We have enhanced the internal review procedurestbe application of existing and proposed GA&dhdards as it applies to our
consolidated financial reportin

Other than the change discussed above, there le@verto significant changes in our internal contosisr financial reporting as defined

in rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange that occurred during the period covered by thort that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our intereantrol over financial reporting.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may be involved in variousiels and legal actions arising in the ordinary sewf business. In the opinion of
management, the ultimate disposition of these msattél not have a material adverse effect on aursolidated financial statements.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information set forth Imstreport, you should carefully consider the fettors disclosed in Item 1A — Risk
Factors of our most recent Annual Report on ForaK 1) subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Qe fhaterialization of any risks and
uncertainties identified in our Special Note Regagd-orward-Looking Statements contained in thioretogether with those previously
disclosed in this report together with those praslg disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-Ksobsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-
Q or those that are presently unforeseen couldtriessignificant adverse effects on our finanaahdition, results of operations and cash
flows. See Item 2. “Management’s Discussion andlysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opers — Special Note Regarding Forward-
Looking Statements” in this quarterly report onfAdt0-Q. The information presented below updatesstnould be read in conjunction with the
risk factors and information previously disclosadur Annual Report on Form 10-K or subsequent @ugrReports on Form 10-Q.

A recent concept release by the Securities and Eae Commission (th“SEC”) may lead to a loss of Investment Company Astemption
that would adversely affect us.

We at all times intend to conduct our businesssscd to become regulated as an investment comyrzagr the Investment Company
Act of 1940, or the Investment Company Act. If were to become regulated as an investment compaay our use of leverage would be
substantially reduced. Section 3(a)(1)(C) of tiektment Company Act defines an investment comparany issuer that is engaged or
proposes to engage in the business of investingyesting, owning, holding or trading in securiteasd owns or proposes to acquire investment
securities having a value exceeding 40% of theevafithe issuer’s total assets (exclusive of U.@&&nment securities and cash items) on an
unconsolidated basis (the “40% test”). Excludednftbe term “investment securities,” among othendbi are securities issued by majority-
owned subsidiaries that rely on the exemption fregistration provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of theestment Company Act.

Certain of our subsidiaries, including Chimera Ad4elding LLC and certain subsidiaries that we nfiayn in the future, rely on the
exemption from registration provided by Section)@}{C) of the Investment Company Act. Section@)XC) as interpreted by the staff of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (or the SEGimes us to invest at least 55% of our assetsiortgages and other liens on and interest in
real estate” (or Qualifying Real Estate Assets) ainéast 80% of our assets in Qualifying Real tesf&sets plus real estate related assets. The
assets that we acquire, therefore, are limitechbyptovisions of the Investment Company Act andrtites and regulations promulgated under
the Investment Company Act.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept etidbesd “Companies Engaged in the Business of Aoy Mortgages and
Mortgage-Related Instruments” (SEC Release No0.9T7?8). Under the concept release, the SEC iswéwiginterpretive issues related to the
Section 3(c)(5)(C) exemption. If the SEC determitteat any of the securities we currently treaDaalifying Real Estate Assets are not
Qualifying Real Estate Assets or otherwise beliaveglo not satisfy the exemption under Section(3J¢}), we could be required to restructure
our activities or sell certain of our assets. Wayrhe required at times to adopt less efficiento@s of financing certain of our mortgage assets
and we may be precluded from acquiring certaingygfenigher yielding mortgage assets. The neteffethese factors will be to lower our net
interest income. If we fail to qualify for exemi from registration as an investment company atility to use leverage would be substantially
reduced, and we would not be able to conduct osinless as described. Our business will be mdiedntl adversely affected if we fail to
qualify for this exemption.
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Item 5. OTHER INFORMATION

As discussed in Notes 2 and 17 to the accompartgngolidated financial statements, we made comgegstatements to our financial
statements as of and for the three and nine mamttisd September 30, 2010 related to the applicafi&éésC 320-10)nvestments — Debt and
Equity Securitieiand ASC 325-40nvestments — Other, Beneficial Interests in Séized Financial AssetsWe believe that these restatements
are immaterial to our financial statements, indistlly or in the aggregate to our financial restdtsany previous reported period. The following
table presents the effects of the restatementsttmoome for the periods set forth below:

Increase/Decrease in Net Income (Loss) to Commock8blders
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag

(unaudited’
For the Yea
For the Quarter Ende For the Six Months Ende Ended
March 31, June 30, September December March 31, June 30, June 30, June 30, December
2010 2010 30, 201C 31, 201C 2011 2011 2010 2011 31, 201C
Previously reported Net Incon 125,61( 124,57¢ 126,43! 156,22 163,36 117,84: 250,18t 281,20! 532,85:
Restated Account Adjustmer - - -
Interest Incomu (60¢) 34¢ (722) 58¢ 7,55¢ 14,56¢ (260) 22,127 (399)
Interest Expens - 69¢ 2,49: 2,59¢ 2,847 - 69¢ 2,847 5,78¢
Interest Income Non-
Retained 13,48: 464 (3,007 (2,762) 12,96¢ 9,981 13,94¢ 22,95: 8,181
Net Interest Incom 12,87: 1,511 (1,239 417 23,37: 24,55t 14,38¢ 47,92¢ 13,57(
Total other-than-temporary
impairment losse (39,377) 3,591 (50,609) (30,42 (64,919 (112,66¢) (35,78)) (177,58 (116,81()
Non-credit portion of loss
recognized in OCI 12,02: (8,09¢) 41,67¢ 8,96¢ 34,16¢ 82,75’ 3,924 116,92¢ 54,56¢
Net other-than-temporary
credit impairment losse (27,35() (4,507) (8,937 (21,457) (30,750) (29,909 (31,85)) (60,65¢) (62,24
Realized gains (losses) on
interest rate sway - (69¢) (2,497 (2,59¢) (2,847 - (699) (2,847 (5,78¢)
Realized gains (losses) on
sales of investments, r - - - 18¢ (1,049 Q) - (2,050 18¢
Realized losses on principi
write-downs of non-Agenc
RMBS 94¢ 32€ 2,517 3,59¢ 19,52( 22,04( 1,27¢ 41,56( 7,38t
Total Adjustments (13,529 (3,369 (10,139 (19,850 8,24 16,68t (16,897 24,93( (46,88¢)
Restated Net Income (Loss) to
Common Stockholders 112,08: 121,21( 116,29t 136,37 171,60° 134,52¢ 233,29. 306,13! 485,96!
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Consolidated Statement of Operations and Compréfeheome (Loss
(dollars in thousands, except share and per stzdad
(unaudited’

For the Quarter end¢  For the Quarter ended For the Quarter endc  For the Quarter ende  For the Quarter ended For the Quarter ended

March 31, 201( June 30, 201 September 30, 201 December 31, 201 March 31, 201: June 30, 201
As As As As As As
Previously Previously Previously Previously Previously Previously

Reportec  Restater Reportec  Restatec Reportec Restatec Reportec Restater  Reportec  Restatec  Reportec  Restatec

Statement of Operation

Interest incom« $ 128,98: $128,37¢ $ 133,52: $133,87( $ 140,40 $139,68! $ 159,96° $160,55( $ 206,57: $ 214,131 $ 194,23! $ 208,80:
Interest expens $ 737« $ 737« $ 719 $ 6,49¢ $ 10527 $ 803« $ 12,07¢ $ 948( $ 10,84¢ $ 8,00z $ 7481 $ 7,481
Interest income, non-

retainec $ 50,86. $64,34. $ 49,82¢ $ 50,29: $ 58,09C $ 55,08¢ $ 33,78( $ 31,01¢ $ 21,15¢ $ 34,12« $ 28,42t $ 38,41t
Net Interest Incom $ 138,64: $151,51¢ $ 155,43. $ 156,24 $ 155,73. $154,50( $ 154,09¢ $154,51! $ 189,30¢ $212,68( $ 186,87( $211,42!

Total other-than-

temporary impairment

losses $ (22,687 $(62,059) $ (24,746 $ (21,159 $ (1,319 $(51,92) $ (5,59 $(36,01) $ (4,205 $ (69,129 $ (1,92¢) $(114,59))
Non-credit portion of loss

recognized in other

comprehensive incon  $ 20,14: $ 32,16¢ $ 17,85¢ $ 9,75t $ 43€ $42,11: $ 3,23: $1220: $ 1,58 $ 3574¢ $ 882 $ 83,63¢
Net other-than-temporan

credit impairment losse  $ (2,549 $(29,899 $ (6,899 $ (11,400 $ (87¢) $ (9,810 $ (2,369 $(23,81) $ (2,625 $ (33,379 $ (1,049 $ (30,959
Realized gains (losses) ¢

interest rate sway $ - $ - $ - % (699 $ - % (249) $ - $ (259 $ - % (284) $ - $ (4299
Realized losses on

principal write-downs on

nor-Agency RMBS $ (949 $ - % (32¢) $ - $ (251) % - $ (359) % - $ (19520 $ - $ (22,040 $ =
Total other gains (losse $ (607) $ 34z $ (12,267 $ (11,930 $ (14,06¢) $(14,049 $ 18,94¢ $ 20,13« $ (6,945 $ 8,67¢ $ (52,89) $ (30,859
Net investment income

(loss) $ 135,49( $121,96: $ 136,27¢ $ 132,900 $ 140,78! $130,64t $ 170,68: $150,83: $ 179,73¢ $187,98: $ 132,93 $ 149,61¢
Net Income (Loss $ 125,61( $112,08! $ 124,57¢ $121,21( $ 126,43! $116,29%¢ $ 156,22" $136,37° $ 163,36: $171,60° $ 117,84 $ 134,52
Net income per share-

basic and dilute $ 01¢ $ 017 $ 0.1€ $ 0.1€ $ 014 $ 0.1 $ 0.1€¢ $ 014 $ 0.1€ $ 017 $ 011 $ 0.1%
Comprehensive incom

Net income (loss $ 125,61( $112,08: $ 124,57¢ $121,21( $ 126,43"! $116,29¢ $ 156,22° $136,37 $ 163,36: $171,60° $ 117,84: $ 134,52¢

Unrealized gain (losses)

on securities available-fc

sale $ 241,58: $228,70¢ $ (151,524 $(152,33f) $ 20,40¢ $ 24,13. $ 253,96. $256,14. $ (180,15} $(200,67)) $ (112,06¢) $(136,62:)
Reclassification

adjustment for net losses

included in the net incorr

(loss) for other-than-

temporary credit

impairment losse $ 254 $2989« $ 6,89 $ 11,400 $ 87¢ $ 9,81( $ 2,36: $2381t $ 262 $ 3337t $ 1,04« $ 30,95
Reclassification

adjustment for realized

losses (gains) included it

net income (loss $ 607 $ (342 $ 32€ $ - % 485 $ (2,03) $ (4119 $ (7,899 $ 16,77¢ $ (1,695 $ 2242( $ 381
Other comprehensive

income (loss $ 244,73. $258,26( $(144,30) $(140,93¢) $ 21,771 $ 31,91( $ 252,200 $272,05 $(160,75) $(168,99) $ (88,60:) $(105,28)
Comprehensive income

(loss) $ 370,34: $370,34: $ (19,720 $ (19,72¢) $ 148,20t $148,20t $ 408,43: $408,43: $ 2,61C $ 2,61 $ 29,24! $ 29,24:
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Item 6.

Exhibits:

Exhibit
Number
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1
31.1
31.2
32.1

32.2

EXHIBITS

The exhibits required by this item are set forthttoa Exhibit Index attached hereto

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chémievestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1he Company’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irmraited herein by
reference)

Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentpiawation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’'sgRrt on Form 8-K filed on

May 28, 2009 and incorporated herein by refere

Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentiwation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’spRe on Form 8-K filed on
November 5, 2010 and incorporated herein by retese

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investi@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the ComyarRegistration Statement on
Amendment No. 2 to Form-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on November 5, 2007 and incorporéiecbin by reference

Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimakeestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpany’s Registration Statement
on Amendment No. 1 to Forrm-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdrhgzein by reference
Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Eutiee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, CHi@fiancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant tet®a 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Eutiee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, Chi@lancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant toll8&.C. Section 1350 as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 101.INS XBRL Instance Document

Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume

Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docume

Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL  Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&ument Created
Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docume

Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Docum

* Submitted electronically herewith. Attachediadhibit 101 to this report are the following documtgeformatted in XBRL (Extensible Busine
Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Statementsirdincial Condition at September 30, 2011 (Unaatliand December 31, 2010 (Derived
from the audited consolidated statement of findramadition at December 31, 2010); (ii) Consolidh&atements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Unaudited) for the quartedsrane months ended September 30, 2011 and 2L Gdnsolidated Statements of
Stockholders' Equity (Unaudited) for the nine menginded September 30, 2011 and 2010; (iv) Consetidatatements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited) for the nine months ended Septembe2@D] and 2010; and (v) Notes to Consolidated FiahiStatements (Unaudited) for the
quarter ended September 30, 2011. Users of thesatta advised pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulaidnthat this interactive data file is deen
not filed or part of a registration statement aygmectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of gdoaities Act of 1933, is deemed not filed for
purposes of section 18 of the Securities and Exgihdct of 1934, and otherwise is not subject tbility under these sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theéoeduly authorized.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: /s/ Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambias:
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
November 18, 201

By: /s/ A. Alexandra Denahan
A. Alexandra Denaha
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige
November 18, 201
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Matthew Lambiase, certify that:
| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdmstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtf@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatetnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proesdur caused such disclosure controls and proesdambe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared,;

b. Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed under «
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and presentils report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in tlggsteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inte control over financial reporting; and

The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @mver financial reporting
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessparforming the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material Waasses in the design or operation of internalrotsibver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that ilwes management or other employees who have dismmtirole in the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting

Date: November 18, 201

[s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambias:

Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipakEntive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
I, A. Alexandra Denahan, certify that:
| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdmstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtf@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatetnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proesdur caused such disclosure controls and proesdambe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared,;

b. Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed under «
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and presentils report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in tlggsteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inte control over financial reporting; and

The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @mver financial reporting
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessparforming the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material Waasses in the design or operation of internalrotsibver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that ilwes management or other employees who have dismmtirole in the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting

Date: November 18, 201

/sl _A. Alexandra Denaha

A. Alexandra Denaha

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial OffiQe




Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION

PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended
September 30, 2011 to be filed with Securities Brchange Commission on or about the date hereef'Report”), |, Matthew Lambiase,

President, and Chief Executive Officer of the Compaertify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarka@a&ley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairlggents, in all material respects, the financiab@wn and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods caovieyethe Repor

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambias:

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
November 18, 201




Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION

PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgf)the period ended
September 30, 2011 to be filed with Securities Brchange Commission on or about the date hereef‘Report”), I, A. Alexandra Denahan,

Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Comparrtify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbadrkey Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairlggents, in all material respects, the financiabdtwn and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods cavieyethe Repor

It is not intended that this statement be deemdxt tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/s/ A. Alexandra Denahe
A. Alexandra Denaha
Chief Financial Office
November 18, 201




